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A1 Financial Highlights
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“WE HAVE
DELIVERED

A RECORD
TRADING
PERFORMANCE
FOR THE
COMPANY IN
2009 DESPITE
DIFFICULT
MARKET
CONDITIONS”

PETER JONES,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE




Revenue

£1.75 billion
up 4.2%

Adjusted Profit
from Operations

cA45.1m’
up 33%

Adjusted Profit
Before Tax

£28.3m’
up 102%

Adjusted Earnings
Per Share

7.32p°
up 57%

Financial Highlights A

Revenue
{Milions of pounds)

*Adjusted Profit from Operations
{Millsions of pounds)

*Adjusted Profit Before Tax

(Millions of pounds)

*Adjusted Earnings Per Share

(Pence)

impat of goodwill pxceptional itemy and debt lasue costy.
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“WE CONTINUE TO BENEFIT FROM QUR
DIVERSIFIED BUSINESS STRUCTURE

WITH STRONG PERFORMANCES FROM BOTH
THE MOTOR DIVISION AND OQOUR MARKET
LEADING INDEPENDENT PARTS DIVISION.”
PHIL WHITE, CHAIRMAN

Lookers plo Annual Report & Accounts 2000




PHIL WHITE

2009 Review A

CHAIRMAN'’S
REVIEW

am delighted to report that Lookers has delivered a record trading performance

for the year, ahead of market expectations, with group like for like new car sales

{defined as excludng businesses closed in 2008) outperforming the UK new car
market The resufts should be considered against the background of the difficult trading
conditions in the UK motor retail market which started m 2008 and contmued in 2009, as
well as difficult general economic conditions across the UK. The group's performance,
therefore, represents an impressive achievement against this background and is
encouraging for the future and in parbcuiar the remainder of 2010,

As | reported i our last annual report, the second half of 2008 saw an unprecedented decimne
in new car sales volumes and used car vahues which resutted in management taking decisive
action at the time to restructure the Motor Division with the closure of 21 underperforming
franchised operations. This action significantly reduced overheads, strengthenad the business
and placed ft in a stronger posttion to trade through the economic downtum and to emerge
from it as a stronger and more efficient business We continue to benefit from our diversified
business structure with strong performances from both the motor dwsion and our market
leading independent parts division

The UK new car market reduced by 6% in 2009 compared to the pravious year with total
registrations of just under 2 million This was the bwest volume since 1335, despite the
mtroduction of the Govemment scrappage scheme which added 284,000 registrations Group
hka for like new car sales incraased by 13% to 61,372 units as we continue to increase our
market share Used car values recovered strongly during the year and hike for iike sales of used
cars increased by 6% with margins also improving Dealership aftersales deliversd strong
resuits and bensfited from a combination of the consolidation n dealership reprasentation in
the UK, a trend which we anticipate may continue dunng 2010, and the managed restructunng
of market areas and franchise representation within our dealership portfolio Both these factors
have increased aftersales ravenue and profitability per site, further strangthening our share of
the eftersales market

Cur independent parts dwvision, which provides a significant contribution to group earmings,
had ancther exceflent year and produced record levels of operating profit in all of the three
businesses of this division The parts division is of particular importance to the group as it
is not subject to cyclical fluctuations in the new car market Furthermore, as the national
market {sader in this sector of the market, we are in a strong postion to explolt future growth
opportunities through the intreduction of new products and services

Whilst economic conditions remain uncertain, our strong performance in 2009 demonstrates
the resilience of the group's businesses which are underpinned by profits generated by
daalership aftersales and the independent parts division This leaves us well positioned to
contnue to trade successfully by outperforming the new car markst and developing further
opportunities from all areas of the busineas

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover was a similar leve! to last year at £1 75 bilkon. *Adjusted operating profit before
amortisation, impaiment end exceptional items increased to £45 1 milion from £33 9 milion
last year Total exceptional tems amounted to £14.2 rullion, prmanty m relation to refinancing
and restructuring costs Following signficant reductions in working caplital, interest costs
reduced by 15 6% to £16 8 milkon. *Adjusted profit before tax was £28 3 millon compared
with an “adjusted profit of £14 0 million last year “Adjusted earmings per share wera 7 32p
compared to 4 66p last year Net cash inflow before exceptional items improved to £22 3
mullion compared to £7 3 mullion m 2008
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BANK FACILITIES

As reported In our 2008 Annual Report, on 29 May 2009 we
agreed terms and conditions with our banking syndicate on new
faciities of €210 million. Whilst the facillties provide a sound
financial structure for the group in the medium term, they were
considerably more expensiwve and onerous than the previous
facilkties, as a rasult of the conditions pravalent in the banking
ndustry at that tme We therefore, considered alternatve
sources of capital to reduce the additional cost of these bank
borrowings On 26 June 2009, we announced a fully underwntten
Firm Placing and Placing and Cpen Offer to ratse gross proceeds
of £80 7 milion (£77 6 million net of expenses) which faclitated
significant improvements to the terms under the amended
banking facilty agreement The fundraising has strengthened the
group's financlal position, with the net proceeds being used to
pay down debt and assist in securing more favourable terms on
the group's banking faciities, as well as prowviding flexibility for the
group to pursue its future development strategy The fundrasing
received strong support from our existing sharsholders and
also provided the opportunity for several new institutional
sharcholders to participate in the share issue which recerved
shareholder approval at the General Mesting held on 22 July
2009

DIVIDEND

A condition of the revised banking agreement is that the group
will pay no dvdends before 30 June 2010 As a resuft, the group
is therefore not in a posltion to pay a dividend for this financial
year However, it is the board's intention to return to a progressive
dvidend pollcy in 2010, within the restrictions placed on the
group by the terms of the amended banking facllity agresment
and subject to satisfactory trading results

BOARD CHANGES

As announced at the Annual General Meeting in June 2009,
Ken Surgenor retired from his position as Chief Executive on 30
September 2009 Ken has been with the group for nearly 25
years and CEO for B years and we would like to thank hum for his
hard work and ded:cation during this tima | am pleased to say
that Ken remains with the group running the Charles Hurst group
of businesses i Northem lreland On 1 October 2009 Peter
Jones, who was Managing Director of the Motor Dmision, was
apponted to the postion of Group Chief Executive. Peter has
extensive experiance of the moter sactor and is well qualified to
lead the company in the next phases of ¢s development On 1
March 2010, as part of a reorganusation of the board, Andy Bruce
was appoirnted Managing Diractor of the Motor Dmsion and
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Bnan Schumacker stood down from the board | would ke to
thank Brian for his valuable contribution to the board over the last
ten years | am pleased to report that he will be staying with the
group, although not on the board but n an important new role as
Operations Director for business development, where he will lead
the delivery of improved profitabllity across the group, particularly
in dealership aftersales

THE FUTURE

The breadth of our cperations glves the group resifience and
the flexibilty to adapt to changing market conditions to help
protect profitability The majority of gross profit 1s generated from
aftersales and the independent parts divislon which represent
60% of gross profit and are not subject to cychical fluctuations in
the new car market

The group has been strengthened by the actions taken in the
Motar Division to reduce costs and close loss making businesses
and the strong results achieved in 2009 have benefited from
this However, we will continue to focus on areas whore we
can improve the performance of the group's franchised outlets
to bring further improvements in profitabibity We continue to
develop the independent parts division with the addrtion of new
product lines, improved facilties and investment in systems, all
of which will bring further increases in profitabilty The successful
equity raising and negotiation of amended banking faclities
have strengthenad the group’s balance sheet, providing greater
flaxibility to ensure that we are well placed and focussed to take
advartage of strategic growth opportunities that may arise

The new year has started wall with current trading being ahead
of both our budget and the pnor year We continue to outperform
the new car market and trading tin the Motor Division 13 ahead
of both budget and prior year The independent parts division
continues to perform well and 15 showing further progress. We
are therefore confident that the company will emerge from the
currant downturn a stronger and more efficient business which s
well placed to deliver future growth

| would like to conclude by thankmg all our people at Lookers for
thelr hard work and dedication in an exceptionally chaflenging
year without whom we would not have been able to deliver such
en exceflent result.

Phil White
Chatrman
9 March 2010
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“THE BREADTH OF OUR OPERATIONS
GIVES THE GROUP RESILIENCE

AND THE FLEXIBILITY TO ADAPT TO
CHANGING MARKET CONDITIONS TO
HELP PROTECT PROFITABILITY.”

PHIL WHITE, CHAIRMAN

Lookers ple Annusl Report & Accounta 2000
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REVIEW

2009 *underlying profit before tax of £28.3 mifion, up from £14 mullion in 2008,
was 8 record result for the company and was delivered despite an economic
backdrop that saw the lowest new car market gince 1095, a declining used car

market and a reducing 1 - 3 year aftersales vehicle parc.

The key factors in dnving performance recovery throughout the business were
* strong used vehicle sales volumes and margin growth,
* new vehicles sales volume growth, which was 18% ahead of the markst,
*  strong turnover and margin growth in our parts division and a strong
aftarsales performance in the motor division, and
=  managed reductions within our business cost base

The strength of our underlying profit performance in difficuft market circumstances gives us PETER JONES
confidence that we can continue to grow the business in 2010, despite short-term market

conditions rermalning challenging The business is excepticnally well placed to take full

advantage of improving economic conditions i the madum term

OPERATING REVIEW

Motor Division

Our motor division consists of 122 franchise dealerships representing
32 marques from 73 sitas  The business generates revenue from
the sale of new cars, the sale of used cars, vehicle servicing and
reparr, and the sale of franchise parts In 2009 our motor dwision
increased profit bafore tax to £25 million from £5 million ;n 2008

Rastructuring in late 2008 removed 21 underperforming franchise
businesses, reduced headcount in ongoing businesses by §% and
reduced the working capital base These actions have recalibrated
the business so that it can be successful at a reduced level of
market activity

The restructunng has radically improved the profile of our
business, enhancing sales and aftersales throughputs per
busmess Durng 2009 we have mada further changas
which have strengthened activity levels per site with
the addition of 8 incremental franchises within existing
facilties

Lookers plo Annua! Report & Accounts 2000
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“THE 2009
*UNDERLYING
PROFIT BEFORE
TAX OF £28.3
MILLION,

UP FROM £14
MILLION IN
2008, WAS

A RECORD
RESULT FOR
THE COMPANY”

PETER JONES,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Lookeras ple Annual Repart & Accounts 2009
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“WITHIN THE NEW CAR MARKET SUB
SECTORS, OUR SHARE OF THE PRIVATE
RETAIL SECTOR IS NOW 4.2%”

PETER JONES, CHIEF EXECUTIVE

New Cars

The new car market fell 6% to just under 2 milhon cars, the lowest new car market
since 1995, despite the market boost of 284 thousand sales stimulated by the
government scrappage scheme

Group new car sales of 61,372 cars increased by 13% compared to 2008
leveis and were 19% ahead of the UK market, improving our markat share
to 3 1% from 26% in 2008 Within the new car market sub sectors, our
share of the private retad sector 1s now 4 2%, our share of government
scrappage sales is 2 6% and our share of the company car sales sactor is
2 5% (2008 1 3%)

Gross margins for new cars reduced to 8 146 (2008 9 3%), prrnanly due
to the effect of margin dilution from sales under the Government scrappage
schame, along with an increase in corporate sactor sales

Looksrs plo Annual Resport & Accounts 2000
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Overview of
franchise breakdown PRESTIGE 45
VOLUME 75
MOTORCYCLES 2
Proportion invested in Proportion invested in Proportion Iinvested in
Prestige brands Volume brands Motorcycle brands
Alfa Romeo 1 Chevrolet 3 BMW 1
Aston Martin 1 Citro&n 4 Yamaha 1
Bentley 1 Fiat 2
Chrysler 1 Ford 9
Dodge 1 Hyundai 2
Ferrari 1 Kia 3
Honda 6 Mazda 1
Jaguar 4 Nissan 4
Jeep 1 Peugeot 4
Land Rover 8 Renault 10
Lexus 2 Seat 1
Maserati 1 Toyota 5
Mercedes-Benz 8 Vauxhall 16
Saab 2 Volkswagen 11
Smart 4
Volvo 3

Loskers plc Annual Report & Accounts R009
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Used Cars

The total used car market in the UK declined by circa 6% mn
2009 Group sales of 42,378 vehicles were in contrast up by 6%
on 2008 levels, well ahead of the market and we continue to gain
market share Gross margins mmproved from 8% in 2008 up to
11% n 2009 and this performance was delivered from a much
leaner stock base through improved stock tumn

The used car market, which has annual safes of coca 7 million
vehicles per annum, remams a huge area of opportunity for the
group Through improved sourcing and a broader stock mx on
our forecourts, we expect to take advantage of the stable market
conditions In the used car sector to enhance our volumes and
make further tnprovemants in gress margin

Aftersales

Despite a decllung vehicle parc within the 1 - 3 year vehicle
sector, the group improved Lke for like aftersales revenue by 4%,
held gross margin lovels at 43%, and improvad operating profits
by 6% This resuited in the further strengthening of dealership
shersales profitability and further improved our share of the
aftermarket opportunity

QOur continued aftersales growth has been underpinned by further
mmprovements In our customer relationship marketing centre
processes and the deployment of slectronic health checks m
all businessas This enables us to dentfy and oplurise service
and repair requirements on all vehicles vistting us for aftersales
work, which combined with our determmation to deliver excallent
customner service, are kay factors In strengthening and optimising
customer retention

Dealarship representation continues to consolidate mn the UK
market and this has tha effect of strengthering our franchise
representation per site These factors, combined with our focus
on ncreasing the retention of aftarsales customers with vehicles
over three years old, gives us further confidence that we can
continue to grow our share of the lucrative aftermarket business
opportunity

Motor Division: further restructuring

Dunng the second half of 2008, we restructured the motor
dwision and this delivered significant cost savings during 2009
Towards the end of 2003, the group tock further actions n
raspect of the motor division central cost base, reviewing central
marketing, group [T and systems, which has reduced our central
cost base by £1 8 rmullion, the full benefit of which will be realised
n 2010 We have also Improved buying terms with specific
service providers which will deliver savings of £08 million in
2010

The group 5 currently in final negotations to add a further six
franchises to current locations This will strengthen throughputs
per site with minimal uplift to our fixed cost base, resulting in
operational improvernents and increased profitability

As referred to in the Chairman’s review, m March 2010 we refined
the management structure of the motor division with Andy Bruce
being apponted Managing Director and Bnan Schumacker being
appointed as Operations Dwector for Business Development.
This wil further improve our focus on the franchise operations
and provide additional mpetus on dellvenng programmes to
underpmn future busmess growth

Lookers plo Annuzl Report & Accounts 2009
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“FPS, THE ONLY
NATIONAL
DISTRIBUTOR
OF QUALITY
BRANDED
AUTOMOTIVE
HARD PARTS,
DELIVERED
STRONG
RESULTS”

Loskers ple Annual Report & Accounts 2000




The equity fund raising exercise undertaken earlier in the year
has transformed the group's balance sheet enabling us to take
advantage of opportunistic acquisiions in 2010 We are ectively
progressing talks to add incremental brands to strengthen
the group porticiio and to strengthen our representation with
specrfic brands where we currantly have hmited representation in
comparson to therr share of the UK market.

Parts Division

The group's independent parts division operates through three
companies, each supplying hard parts to the aftermarket, the
customer base baing primarily motor factors wheo, in turn supply
the independent repair sector

The total vehicle car parc in the UK markst s now over 30
million vetucles, with st over 65 mullion of these being n the
conventionally, dealership dominated 1 to 3 year vehicle parc In
contrast to the younger vehicle parc, the 4 year plus vehicle parc
m the UK continues to grow and the outlook for our independent
parts operations is good as each of the businesses continues to
take an increased share of a growing market opportunity

QOur independent parts division continues to go from strength
te strength, achieving record results, with all three businesses
producing record levels of operating profit This performance
Is even more impressive as it follows a record performance in
2008. Turnover for the dvision increased by 18%, opserating profit
ncreased by 34% and profit before tax alsc mcreased by 34%,
from £8 34 milon to £11 16 mdlion. The business continues
to benefit as the slower demand for new cars transiates mto a
greater need by consumers for car repairs to their curment vehicle
as they choose to maintain rather than exchange that vehicle for
a new vehicle

FPS, the only national distributor of qualty branded automotive
hard parts delivered strong results with tumover increasing by
17% and operatng profit of £7 9 million representing an increase
of 38% The business now operates from 19 regional depots
supported by our National Distribution Centre in Sheffield
Two dapots were relocated during the year to new, expanded

2009 Review A

prermsas which allowed the full range of products t¢ be camed
at more locations, including exhausts at all locations for the flrst
time Growth was also supported by the mtroduction of new
product lines whilst efficiency banefits were achieved by an
increasa in electromic order capture and information exchange

Apec, a market leader in the UK and Irish markets for aftermarket
braking components, alsc had a very successful year avercoming
the pressures caused by the weakness n Sterling to produce a
record result Turnover increased by 23% and operating profit
increased by 9% to £1 9 million A significant customer contract
was renewed during the year and the company continues to
davelop hydraulic braking products New marketing Inhatives
and the launch of a new wabsite helped strangthen the
company’s position as market leader in terms of product range
and avalability

BTN, a leading supplier and provider of technical support
and servicing of turbochargers also delivered an excellent
performance n 2008 Tumover increased by 21% as the
company continues to expand salas to motor factors and new
spectalist customers A move to new premses dunng the year
provides modern facilities to enhance technical and service
support to customers and provide a basts for further growth in
this expanding market.

Lookers plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009
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OUTLOOK

Both the Motor Division and Parts Dmsion have made a good
start to the year We have continued to outperform the new car
market and our used car performance continues to be strong
Furthermore wa have a healthy new ¢ar order book for March and
aftersales continue to perform well with the resutt that the Motor
Dnasion is ahead of both budget and prior year Moreover the
independcent parts division is again showing further year on year
progress and is in lne with budget We therefore expect the result
for the first quarter to be ahead of both budget and last year

Whilst economic conditions remain uncertain, our strong
performance in 2009, our market leading parts division, together
with the actions that have been successfully completed in the
Motor Division to reduce costs, demonstrates the rasilience
of the group's diversified business model and leaves us well
poshioned to continue to trade successfully

We continue to focus on areas where we can improve the
performance of the group's franchised outlets including
consolidation of existng srtes and edding dual franchises
where this Is appropnate We will also focus on tamgeted
end selective acquistions to further improve ouwr franchise
representation We continus to invest in new marketing nitlatives,
including the adoption of the Lookers brand across all mainland
car dealerships, together with a relaunch of our wabsite and
enhanced digtal marketing The Parts Diviston contlnues to
benefit from the addition of new product lines and the slower
demand for new cars continues to boost car repars and demand
for parts

The successful equity fund raising in July has strengthened the
group's balance sheet providing greater flexibility to ensure that
wo ara well placed and focussed to take advantage of strategic
growth opportunities that may arise and we are confident that
the company will emerge from the current dowrtum a stronger
and more efficient business which is well placed to deliver future
growth

Peoter Jones

Chief Executve
9 March 2010

Lookere ple Annual Report & Accounta 2008
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FINANCE DIRECTOR’S
REVIEW

esplte the difficult trading conditions in the motor retall sector, on a fike for like
Dbasismwerhcmasadbyﬂ%homﬁ.ﬁ&biﬂonhstmwiﬂmosiﬁvegmm

in all sectors of the business. Overall turnover remamed at a sumilar leve! to last
year at £1.75 billion compared to £1.78 billion the provious year. *Adjusted profit from
operations increased by 33.0% to £45.1 million, an increase of £11.2 million compared to
the prior year of £33.9 milllon.

Fellowing a significant recuction in workang capita), part:cutarty in stecks of new and used cars,
total interest costs reduced by 15 6% to £16 8 million compared to £19 9 million in 2008, with
operational interest charges, excluding interest on pension scheme habilities, reduced by 27%
from £18 8 milion to £14 5 mullion. Interest on group bormowings = based inhally on floating
interest rates supplemented with interest rate hedges A significant element of the term loan
was covered by interest rate hedges during the year, as described in more detal in the notes
to the financial statements The proporbion of long-term dabt covered by hedging Instruments
raduced by £48 mifion in Cctober 2009 when one ol the hedges expred, reducing hedging
coverage to approximately 66% of the term loan. However, as the hedges were established
m 2007 when interest rates were significantly higher than current levels, they have the effect of
mcreasing the mterest charga so that we do not get the full bensfit of tha low base rate which 1s
curently applicable in the UK

*Adjusted profit before tax, amortisation, excaptional tems and debt issue costs for the year
increased by 102% to £28 3 millon, & record result for the company and an improvement
of £14 3 miflion comparad to the previous year of £14 0 million Profit before tax and after
exceptional tems was £11.5 million compared to a loss before tax in the provious year of £14 9
millon This resulted in adjusted earnings per share* of 7.32p compared to 4 66p n the pror
year, an mncrease of 57% and basic eamings per share of 2 79p compared to a boss of 7 68p in
the provious year The calculation of earnings per share has been affected by the equity raising,
which is referted to in mors detail below and which resulted in an increase in the weighted
average number of shares in issue of 37.5%

Net exceptional terns amounted to £14.2 million compared to £20 0 nullion m 2008 Refinancing
costs were £6 6 milion which relates to the new bank faciities Costs in relation to closed
dealerships represent £6.2 million, recrganisation costs were £0 8 millon, and other exceptional
tems were £05 millon The cash mmpact of except:onal tems was a cash outflow of £126
million.

TAXATION

The tax charga for the year of £3 § million compares to a net tax charge of £1 1 miflion in the prior
year and reflects a charge of 30% of profit before tax. This is slightly higher than the standard
rate of corporation tax as some of the exceptional costs are not aflowable for tax.

CASHFLOW AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Cash generated from operations for the year was £20 1midion, atthough this mereases to £32 6
million after adjusting for exceptional tems and debt tssue costs incurred in the refinancing
Working capital increased by £14 1 million with a reduction in stock of £56.2 mullion offsetting
tha repaymert of stocking loans and other creditors of £52 0 million. However, an increase
in debtors of £183 million cue to higher lovels of trading, was the princpal reason for the
ncrease in working capital. Capital expenditure was £7.2 miflion compared to £8 6 milion
the previous year and proceeds from the sale of propertes were £2.5 million The majority of
capital expenditure was on new or improved prermises for the parts division or smprovernents
to dealership properties

Leokers ple Annual Report & Accounts 2008
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“THE GROUP
HAS SUFFICIENT
FACILITIES
AVAILABLE

TO FUND ITS
OPERATIONS
AND ALLOW
FOR FUTURE
EXPANSION"




As referrad to earlier, the group successiully rarsed E77 6 rmulbon
from the proceeds of the share issue The proceeds were used to
repay £65 million of bank loans with the balance of £12 6 milllon
being applied aganst the revolving cradit facility Net cash inflow
was P9 8 milion, compared to a cash outfiow of £12 7 milion
n 2008 Adusting for exceptional dems gives a cash mflow for
the year of £22 3 million compared to £7 3 million in 2008 This
resutted in a reducticn n net debt to £79 0 million compared to
£149 5 million at the start of the year

SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS AND FINANCING

As set out in the Chaiman’s Review, the group renewed its
banking facilhes to provide tota] faciies of £210 million until
30 Apnl 2012 end raised £77 € milion net of axpenses through
the Fim Placing and Placing and Open Offer £60 milion of the
proceeds was used to repay the high interest loan, which incurred
interest at 10% above LIBOR, £15 millon was used as a partial
repayment of the tenm loan and £12 6 millon was apphed agamnst
the revoling credtt facility This resulted in a significant reduction
in the company's geanng and also allowed revisions to be made
to the banking agreement which were more favourable to the
company, partcularty in relation to interest charges Folowmng
these amendments to the banking facites, the group has
avallable bank faciiies which consist of a revoiving credit facility
of £53 millon and a term loan of £91 milhon Interest 1s charged
on both loans at a margin of between 3% and 4% above LIBOR
These facilties are subject to quarterly covenant tests on interest
cover, bank debt to EBITDA, total debt to EBITDA and debt service
cash cover The covenant tests are set at levels that provide
sufficient headroom and flexibilty for the group until matunty of
the faciities in April 2012

At 31 December 2009 total facilities wera £144 miflion of which £79
million was being utilised These facilitles together with the group's
strong operabonal cash flow, ndicate that the group has sufiicient
faclties available to fund its operatons and afiow for future
expansion At 31 December 2009 gearing was 49% compared
te 180% at 31 December 2008 and net dett to EBITDA was 15
compared to 3 4 last year The group's underlying profitability and
strong cash flow should result in further reductions in bormowing
in the future and help ensura that the lavel of borowing remains
under control and is at a reasonable lavel in relation to net assets.
Further mformation on the going concern basis of preparation s
Included in note 1

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

The group has a policy of nvesting in freehold and long leasshokd
property as the preferred means of providing premises for the car
dealerships, whera possible As a result wa have a significant and
valuable portfofio of freehold and long leasehold properties whers
the net book value at 31 Decernber 2009 was £183 4 milhon
comparad to £186.2 million last year Cf this amount £3.2 mullion
has been disclosad within current assets as assets held for sale
Short leasehc!ld properties had a value of £8 5 millicn (2008 £8 8
mullior)

DIVIDENDS

Following agreement of the new banking facilties the group i not
n a position to pay a dmvidend for this financial year However it is

2009 Review A

the board’s curment intention to retum to a progressive dvdend
policy m 2010 withm the restnchions placed on the group by the
terms of the amended banking facility agreemernt and subject to
satisfactory trading results.

PENSION CERCIT

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes both
of which are closed to entry for new members Whilst there has
been a recovery in tha value of pension scheme assats during the
year, the underlying assumptions used to calcutate habilties of the
schemes have resulted in an increase in total labilities compared
to the previous year The effect of thesa factors is that the pension
defict for both schemes has mcreased by £56 million, after
deferred tax, so that the total deflcrt is £25 6 midlion (2008 £200
milion) The assessment of valuation 1s based on several key
essumptions prescribed by accounting standards, where retatively
small changes in the bases of valuation can have a signfficant
effect on the cakoulated defict. The group has very ittle control
over the assumptions used and ther impact on the valuation,
hence the movement in tha calculated deficlt can be subject to
tugh leve!s of volatiity which are outside of our control The board
continues to look at its options to reduce both the annual cost
of operating both schemes and what actions can be taken to
raduce the defict on the schemes, thereby reducing exposure to
movements in these liabilites and reducing the defict over the
medium and longer term

VAT

The group has previously submitted a number of claims with HM
Revenue & Customs {'HMRC") nrespect of potential overpayments
of VAT relating to pnor years. If the group 18 successful n s
negotiations with HMRC, then there Is the potential for significant
repayments to be received by the group The nature of the process
for negotiating thesse clams with HMRC can take & considerable
time so the tming of any potential recelpt s uncertan and no
benefit for any potential repayment has been mnciuded m the
accounts end no mcome will be included until the clams have
been agreed with HMRC

Robin Gregson

Finance Director
9 March 2010
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71 Board of Directors

EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS
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1 PETER JONES. Chief Exacutive

Aged 53 Joined the Group and appointed
1o the Board in May 2008 and appointed
a3 Managing Dwector of the Motor Division
in January 2009 He became Group Chisf
Executive on 1 October 2009

2. ROBIN GREGSON Finance Director
Aged 49 Chartered Accountant Jomned
the Group In May 2008 Previously Group
Finance Director of Cardpolnt plc and
CD Bramall plc, whom he joined In 1896
following 15 years with Deloitte

3. ANDREW BRUCE. Managmg Director,
Motar Division

Aged 44 Joned the Group in 2000 and
apponted to the Board in 2002

Formerly UK Sales Director for Land

Rover he was appointed to his cumrent
position n March 2010 following a strategic
restructuring of the company's senior
management and has full accountability for
the Group s Motor Division perdformance

4. TERRY WAINWRIGHT

Cperations Director

Aged 82 Joined the Group in 2004 following
the acquisition of FPS Appointsd to the
Board in October 2005, he has respensibility
for tha Group’s Parts Division He has over
35 ymars experience in the Independent
Automotive Aftermarkst and has hald senior
positions with Quinton Hazel, GKN and
Unipart Group




NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

*Senser Independent Director 1 Member of the Audit Committese ¥ Mamber of the Resmunerstion Commities
Commitiss

A Member of the Nomanation

Board of Directors A

6. PHIL WHITE: Chairman ¥ A

Aged 80 Appointed in September 2006
Chief Executive of National Express for 10
years untd 2007 He is also Chairman of
Kier Group pic and The Unite Group plc

8. TONY BRAMALL

Aged T4 Appointed in June 2008
Chawrnan and Director of CD Bramall plc
until February 2004

T JOHNBROWN " t¥ 4

Aged 65 Appainted in May 2005
Chartered Certified Accountant Currantly
Non-Executive Chairman of Norcros plc
end AIM listed Voller plc, he is also a
Non-Executive Director of Henry Boot plc
Until July 2005 he was Chief Exacutive of
Speedy Hire plc a company he founded in
1977 which Is the market leader in its fleld

8. BILL HOLMES t ¥ A

Aged 5T Appointed In June 2008
Praviously managing partner of the Lseds
office of BDO Stoy Hayward, whom he
jeined in 2002 from Arthur Andersen

where ha had baen a partner since 1888
Prior 10 joining Arthur Anderson ha qualifled
as an Inspector of Taxes with HM Revenue
& Customs
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Directors’ Report

The Cirectors have pleasure n submitting their report which includes the Statements on Corporate Governance and the audited
financtal stataments for the year ended 31 December 2008

1 ACTIVITIES
The mam actitres of the Group are the sale, hre and mamntenance of motor vehicles and motorcycles, including the sale of
tyres, oil, parts and accessories

2. ENHANCED BUSINESS REVIEW
An analysis of the functicnal performance of the Group, elong with an analysis of financial Key Performance Indicators (“‘KPls™)
is provided on pages 4 to 19 The man financial KPls of the Group are revenue, profit before tax, sarnings per share, gearing
and cash flow from operations. The additicnal information required to be disclosed m the Enhanced Business Review is shown
below
The Group's business activities, financial condition, results of operations or the Company’s share pnce could be affected by any
or all of the following nsks or uncertainties

Global Economy

The new and used car markets are nfluenced by general economic conditions, including changes in interest rates, fuel prices,
indiract taxation, the cost and availabilty of credit and other factors which affect lavels of consumer confidence The demand
for new cars 1s cychical, which in some years will lead to reduced margins caused by oversupply This could have an adverse
impact on the eamings of the Group, though this would likely be mitigated by potential increases in both the used car market
and the aftersales markat as customers substituta nearly new for new, or spend more keeping their old vehicles roadworthy
The UK 18 currently expeniencing problems caused by the global downturn  Despite lower interest rates, the lack of available
credit, together with a ganeral faeling of uncertainty in the economy has resulted in a significant fafl sn new car registrations

However, we have seen an increasae in activity in both used car sales and within the parts distnbution businesses and the
Group's business has proved to be resiient against this background

Manufacturers' Financial Stability

The Group relies on its manufacturer partners for a significant proportion of its ravenuas and profits The faillure of a manufacturer
could have a significant impact on the short-term profitability of a retaller partner The Group has attempted to mitigate this nsk
by having trading relationships with a large number of manufacturers, so that the impact of any one manufacturer faling would
be lessened Due to global economic events, several manufacturers have come under severe financial pressure However, it
appears that there has been significant political will to support these manufacturers to prevent their dermise because of the effact
this would have on their local economies

Liquidity and Financing

The Group uses a number of mathods to fund tts day to day business These methods ara (i) bank borrowings by way of committed
borowing facilites (Banking faciiies of £144 million agreed with existing lenders, matunng 2012), {i)) from manutacturer and third
party finance houses through uncommitted stocking facilities to fund the purchase of stock, and i) from suppliers by way of trade
credit A withdrawal of any of these financing facilties or a failure to renew them as they expire could lead to a significant reduction
in the trading abilty of the Group However the share Issue in 2009 has significantly strengthened the Group's balance sheet and
provided a substantial source of additional funding.

Exchange Rates

The Group is affected by curmency fluctuations to the extent that a large propertion of eur manufacturer partners either source parts
or manufacture vehicles overseas The appreciation of the Euro against Stering has meant that most manufacturers have had to
increase prnices despite the cument market conditions n recent years, Stering had appreciated agamnst most cumencies, allowing
imported vehicles to be priced more competitively The Board s awara of the uncertainties this causes and the only protection that
can be taken 1s to ensure the Group retains a broad mix of the major manufacturers, both UK and overseas, to limit the sffect.

Block Exemption

Block Exemption Is a complex set of rules that defines how new vehicles are supplied, distributed and dealt with after they are
sold These rules were changed in 2003 and certain parts becarne effective in 2005 scrapping the restnctions on the number
of dealers operating within a temitory, and ellowing the provision of aftersalas support to be separate from the sale of new
vehicles The Group has yet to ses any mpact of these changes, though the Board 13 aware of the possiblo competition that
these changes could bring to our established businesses By ensuring that our franchise businesses continue concentrating
on customer service, the Board bellaves that the Group will minimise the impact of these, and any future changes to Block
Exemption rules

Competitive Nature of the Market

The motor vehucte distribution market ts highly competitive and compnses a smafl number of farge dealer networks, similar to
Lookers, down to a large number of much smaller operators. In addition, the market includes internet-based dealers and private
ndmduals The franchised busnesses also compste n the aftersales market which compnses similar franchised businesses,
supply and fit chains, and a large number of small ndependant garages and bodyshops
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Directors’ Report

2. ENHANCED BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Competitive Nature of the Market {continued)

The market therefors offers customers different options depending upon price and qualty of service they wish to take, with
owners of new and nearly new vehicles tending to use the franchised businesses and owners of older vehicles tending towards
the small ndependent provider The Group's franchised businesses rely on the guality of their customer service and the ability
to adjust pricing, enabling them to react to local competitve conditions

The parts distnbution business operates in a vary competttive market place, dominated by a faw large players The differentator
in this market 1s the quality of customer service offered by the Group's businesses, which continues to give the compatitive edge
whera price differences would not be enough

QGovernment Legisiation
In addition to Block Exemption rules noted above, changes to the Government's transport policy could adversely affect the
Group's profitability if, as a result, customers choose to use afternative forms of transport

Information Systems

The Group 15 dependent upon a number of business critical systems which, f interrupted for any length of time, could have a
material sffect on the efficient running of the Group’s businesses The Board has implemented a series of contingency plans
which would enable the Group to resume operations withun a shart space of time, thus mitigating the bkelihood of matenal loss

Manutacturers'’ Influence

The Group's activities are aiso influenced by manufacturers 1n other ways The timing, frequency and efficiency of new
mode! roll-outs and changes In consumers’ perception of these models and brands could matenally affect the Group's
business Similady, manufacturers use a sernes of incentive schemes to support new car sales, wamanty programmes
etc and changes or discontinuation of these schemes could also affect the Group's business By repressnting over thirty
marques, the Group believes that this diversrty recluces the impact to the Group that manufacturers’ influence could cause

DIVIDENDS AND SHARES

Ordinary shares of 5p each

No interim dividend was paid dunng the year (2008 1 60p per share) No final dividend is recommended for the year (2008
same}

DIRECTORS

The following were Directors of the Company at the end of the financiat year and thereafter Their interests in the ssued
ordinary shara capital of the Company were as follows

311209 311208

Number Number
D C A. Bramall 85,444,637 40,678,887
J E Brown 98,318 53,628
A, C Bruce 349,271 195,758
R A Gregson 200,000 -
W Holmes 36,666 20,000
P Jones 1,981,000 558,000
B Schumacker 1,328,762 716,940
T M Watnwright 159,467 86,982
P M White 53,716 29,300

Details of Directors’ share options are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
All holdings are beneficial

There was no change in tha interests of the Directors in shares or share options of the Company between 31 December
2009 and & March 2010

The mid-market price of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2009 was 49 Op and the range during the year was 18 Sp to
69 Op
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DIRECTORS {continued)
Dwrectors retiring by rotation are J E Brown and P M White and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

D V Dyson resigned from the Board on 19 May 2009, H K Surgenor retired from the Board on 30 September 2009 and B
Schumacker retired from the Board on 1 March 2010

There are no other contracts with the Company or s subsidianes in which a Director of the Company has any interest, other
than service contracts (Exacutive Directors) or letters of appointment (Non-Executive Diractors}

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which were made during the
year and remain in force at the date of this report

APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT
The Directors' Remuneration Raport will be laid befora the Annual General Meeting for adoption as a separate resolution from
the Auditors’ Report and the Company's accounts for the year ended 31 Oecernber 2009

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of the authonised and 1ssued shara caprtal, together with details of the movements in the company’s issuad share capstal
dunng the year are shown in note 23 The company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no night to fixed income
There are no specific rastnctions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of tha Articles of Association and prevailing legislation The Directors are not aware of any agreements between
hotders of the company’s shares that may rasult in rastrictions on the transfer of secunties or on voting nghts

No perscn has any specal rights of control over the company's share capital and all lssued shares arae fully paid

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the company 1s governed by its Articles of Association, the
Combined Code, the Companies Acts and related legislation The Articles themselves may be amended by special resofution
of the shareholders The powers of Directors are described in the Main Board Terms of Refarence, copies of which are
available on request, and the Corporate Governanca Statement on page 28

Under its Articles of Association, the company has authority to issue 480,000,000 ordinary sharas

There are also a number of other agresments that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the company such
as commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease arrangements and employees’ share plans  None of these
are considered to be signficant in terms of therr kkely impact on the business of the group as a whole

EMPLOYEES

Employees are encouraged to discuss with management any matters which they are concerned about and factors affecting
the Group In addition, the Board takes account of employees’ interasts when making decisions Suggestions from employees
aimed at improving the Group's performance are welcomed

A significant number of employaes are remunerated partly by profit-related bonus schemes

Thea Group newsletter (Outlook) is circulated periodically to all employees The purpose of the newsletter is to keep employees
up to date with Group developments and activities Communicating in this manner ensures a consistent message

Long service awards were made dunng the year to those staff with 25 years' continuous service Special awards were also
made to those staff reaching 40 and S0 years’ service

All employment policies have been updated to conform with current legislation

It 13 the Group's policy to encourage career development for all employees to help staff achueve job satisfaction and increase
personal motivation

ETHICAL EMPLOYMENT

It Is the Group's policy to offer equal opportunities to disabled persons applying for vacancies and provide them with the
same opportunities for employment, fraining, career development and promotion as are available to all employees, within the
hmitations of ther apttuda and ebilities In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure
that therr employment with the Group continues and appropriate amangements are made

Employment within the Group s offerad on the basis of the person’s ability to work and not on tha basis of race, indmdual
characteristics, creed or poltical opinion

SPECIAL BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(a) Renewal of Directors’ power to allot shares
The Special Business of the Annual General Meeting includes an Ordinary Resolution (Resolution 7) which gives the
Directors the power to allot shares

This authority, which will expire at the end of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2011, is to allot up to £6,400,150
(128,003,011 shares), being approximately one thurd of the Company’s issued ordinary share captal as at 9 March 2010,
together with 160,475 shares for share options which could be availabla for exercise under the Lookers SAYE Scheme before
the date of the next Annual General Mesting
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9. SPECIAL BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)

A similar Rasolution was passed at the last Annual General Meating and the Directors intend to seek renewal of this authority
at subsequent Annual General Meetings

{b) Disapglication of statutory pre-emption nights
The Special Busingss of the Annual General Meeting includes a Special Resalution (Resohition 8) to disapply the pre-
emption nghts of shareholders to allow tha issue of a imited number of shares

This 18 a Resclution that the Directors propose each year at the Annual General Meeting The Companies Act 2006 requires
that, subject to certain exceptions, before Directors of 8 Company can issue any new shares for cash, the new shares must be
offered first to the existing shareholders proportionately to their existing shareholding This prowision can create considerable
administrative difficulty, particularly if a rights 1ssue 1s made, because of the entitiements to fractions of shares which may
anse and because of the restrichions mposed on the Company's ability to offer new shares to certain overseas shareholders
by the laws of relevant overseas jurisdiction

As in previous years, the authonty would enable the Diractors to avoid any difficutty which rmight anse in those circumstances
It is also customary each year for public companles to take a kmited authority to 1ssue new shares for cash without first offerng
those shares to existing sharsholders Therefore, through this Resolution, the Directors are seeking an authonty to 1ssue
small quantities of shares for cash The authonty 13 mited to the allotment of up to a maximum nominal value of £958,819
(19,176,380 shares) in ordinary shares, being 5% of the Company's issued ordinary share capital as at 9 March 2010

This will continue to provide the Directors with flexibility to act in tha best interests of the shareholders when opportunibies
arise

The authonty the Directors are seeking will expire at the end of the Annual General Masting to be held in 2011 As usual, they
intend to seek renowal of this authonty at subsequent Annual General Mestings

(¢) Purchase of own shares
The Special Business of the Annual General Maeting includes a Specal Resclution (Resolution ) to authonse the
Company to make market purchases of ts own shares

The Resolution specidfies the maximum number of shares the Company can buy up to a nominal value of £1,917,638
{38,352,760 shares) representing 10% of the Company’s tssued ordinary share capital as at @ March 2010, and the maximum
and minimum prices at which the Company can buy them, reflecting the requiraments of the Companies Act 2006 and the
Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority

As at 9 March 2010, the Company does not have any outstanding options to purchase its own shares pursuant to the authority
to buy its own shares granted at the 2009 Annual General Meeting

The Company would only buy shares on the London Stock Exchange The Board can only use the power to buy shares after
considenng the effect on earnings per share and the benefits for longer term shareholders

At the 2009 Annual General Mesting, the Company was authonsed to make market purchases of ts own shares This
Resolution is to renew that authority for a further year It doas not mean that the Company will buy s own shares at any
particular price or indeed at all. The Directors do not intend at present to use this power but wish 1o retan the flexibility to do
so in the future

The authority would expre at the end of the Annual General Meeting to be held n 2011 As usual the Directors intend to seek
renewal of this authority at subsequent Annual General Meetings
(d) Notice of General Mestings
A Special Resolution, (Resolution 10) the purpose of which 1s to renaw the authority given at the tast Annual General
Meeting to call General Meetings on 14 days notce mstead of 21 days
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10. DONATIONS
Charitable donations amounted to £16,293 {2008 £21,000) No political donations were made (2008 £ril)

11. AUDITORS
in the case of each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the date when this report was approved
. so far as each s awars, there s no relevant audt information {as defined by the Companres Act 2006) of which
the Company’s auditors are unawars, and
. each of the Diractors has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as & Director to make himself aware of any
ralevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of S418 of the Companies Act 2006
Deloitte LEP have expressed ther willingness to continue in office and, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, their
re-appolntment will be proposed at the Annual General Mesting

12. SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY
The Group does not formally follow the better payment practice code issued by the Department of Trade and Industry because.
in hne with industry practice, manufacturers insist upon direct access to our bank accounts and they take funds to pay for both
vehicles and parts when they fall dus Other suppliers are generally paid in accordance with thelr terms of trading
At 31 December 2009, the trade craditors of the Group and the Company reprasented 32 and 30 days’ (2008 44 and 30
days') purchases respeactvely

13. DERIVATIVES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's treasury activities are operated within policies and procedures approved by the Board, which include defined
controls on the use of financial instruments managing the Group's nsk The major financial nsks faced by the Group relate to
interest rates and funding The policies agreed for managing these financial nsks have remained the same since the beg:nning
of the period under review, and are summarised below
The Group finances its operations by a mixture of retamed profits, bank borrowings, stock financing and commercial paper
To reduce the Group's exposure to movements in tnterest rates, the Group seeks to ensure that it has an appropriate bzlance
between fixed and floating rate borrowings The Group uses interest rate swaps and collars in order to manage s exposure
to interest rate nsk, all such arangements are approved by the Board in hne with its treasury policies
The Group seeks to ensure continuity of funding by taking out certain borrowings which are repayable in instalments over
periods of at least three years Short-term flexibility 1s achieved by overdraft facilities
The Group has no significant exposure to foresgn currency, nor does t undartake any trading m financial instruments
Refer to notes 15, 19, 20 and 30 of the notes to the Financial Statements for further information in this area

14. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
On 8 March 2010 the following shareholders, so far as the Directors are aware, had an interest in 3% or more of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company

D C A Bramall and Famuly 85,444,637 shares {22 2B%)
Treffick Limited 66,224,910 shares {17 27%)
Schroders Investment Management Limited 18,904,000 shares {4 93%)

The Directors have not bean notified of any other holders of 3% or more of the issued ordinary share capital

By Order of the Board

LN o S
R. A. Gregson

Company Secratary
8 March 2010
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Statements on Corporate Governance

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Diractors is collectively accountable to the Company's sharsholders for good corporate govermance and 1s
committed to achieve compliance with the principles of corporate governance set out in the 2008 Combined Code (the “Code™)
of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty

Throughout 2009 the Company has been 1n compliance with the Code provisions set out in 2008 FRC Combined Code on
Corporate Governance

The Board
The Board of Directors at the start of the financial year under raview compnsed six Executive Directors and four Non-Executive
Owractors On 19 May 2009 D V Dyson resigned and R A Gregson was appointed, H K Surgenor retired as Chigf Executive
on 30 Septernber 2009 and was replaced by P Jones, B Schumacker retired on 1 March 2010, J E Brown, P M White and W
Holmes are considared to be independent Non-Executive Directors
The Code requires a balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors such that no individual or small group of indduals can
dominate the Board’s decision-making process The number and quabty of the Non-Executive Directors on the Board, with ther
combination of diverse backgrounds and expertise, ensures this prninciple 1s met
The Board has a documented schedule of matters reservad for its decision which includes the following

- agreeing objectives, policies and strategles, and monltoring the performance of the executive management,

- approval of the Group's strategrc plans and busmness plans,

- approval of annual and interim results,

- deciding on major changes in organisation and the shape of the Group, including entry into new fields of operation and

departure from those which are no jonger considered to be appropnate, and
- approving major individual capital projects

The Chauman takes responsibility for ensuring the Directors receve accurate, timely and clear information Monthly financial
informationis provided to the Directors Regular and ad hoc reports and presentations are circulated, with all Board and committee
papers being issued in advance of meetings by the Company Secretary In addition to formal Board meetings, the Chairman
maintans regular contact with the Chief Executive and the other Directors to discuss specific i1ssues In furtherance of ther
duties, the Directors have full access to the services of the Company Secretary and may take independent professional advice
at the Company's expense The Board beliaves that given the expenence and skills of its particular Directors, the identification
of general traiming needs 13 best left to the indvidual’'s discretion If any particular development need i1s dentified through the
Board's formal appraisal process or by an individual Director, the Company makes the necessary resources available

Director Roles

P M White Is the Non-Executive Chairman and P Jones is the Chief Executive The Chairman leads the Board and the Chief
Executive manages the Group and Implements the strategy and policles adopted by the Beard The dwision of responsibilities
bstween the role cf Charman and Chief Executive has been set out in wrting

J E Brown 15 the Seruor independent Director and his prime responsibility is to provide a communication channe! batween
the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors and to ensure that the views of each Non-Exscutive Director are gwven due
consideraton The Company Secretary would minute any unresolved concerns exprassed by any Diractor

The Company mantains appropnate directors' and officers’ insurance in respect of legal action against its Directors
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COMPLIANGCE STATEMENT (continued) )
Attendance at Meetings

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at regular Board meetings and at meetings of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees

Scheduled meetings held in 2009

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Number held 10 4 4 1
Number attended
D C A Bramall 10 4 4*
J E Brown 10 4 4 1
A. C Bruce 10 1°
D Vv Dyson (resigned 19 May 2009) 3 2°
R A. Gregson (appomnted 19 May 2009) 6 2*
W Holmes 10 4 4
P Jones 10 2 4*
B Schurnacker 10 1"
H K Surgenor {resignad 30 September 2008) 7 3 1*
T M Wainwright 10 1*
P M Whie 10 4" 4 1

*in attendance by nvitation of the Commuttee for all or part of the meeting

APPOINTMENT AND SELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Appointments

The Code requires there to be e formal, ngorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of appropriate new Directors,
which should be made on merit and against objective criteria The Board has an established Nominations Commuttee for this
purpose and its terms of reference are available from the Company Secretary

The Board approves the appointment and removal of Directors

The Board i1s aware of the other commitments of lts Non-Executive Directors and is satisfied that these do not conflict with their
duties as Non-Executive Directors of the Company

Thae service contracts of Executive Directors and the letters of appomtment of Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection
at the Company's registerad office dunng normal business hours and at the Annual General Mesting

Directors recelve induction on their appointment to the Board as appropriate, covering matters such as the operation and activities
of the Group (including key financial and business risks to the Group's activities), the role of the Board and the matters reserved
for its decision, the tasks and membership of the principal Board Committees, the powers delegated to those Committees, the
Board's governance policles and practices, and the Group's latest financial information The tralning and induction process for
Directors takes into account the davelopment of the Group and applicable governance standards Major shareho!ders are offered
the opportunity to meet new Directors as any appointments are made

The requirement to propose Directors for re-appontment at regular intervals is met by applying the Company's Articles of
Association These require that at each Annual General Meeting not lass than one-third of the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation must retire, and that any Director, who was not appointed at elther of the two previous Annua! General
Maetings and who has served as a Director for more than two years since appointment or last re-appointment, has to retrre

In accordance with the Code, each new Non-Executive Director 3 appomnted for a specified term, baing an initial pariod from
eppointment to the next Annual General Mesting where he will be subject to re-appointment at that meeting, for a further period
ending not later than the Annual General Mesting held three years thereafter There is a general assumption on the part of the
Board that independent Non-Executive Cirectors will not normally be invited to stand for re-appointmant after serving six years

Nomination Committee

The Nomnation Committee compnises P M White, J E Brown, W Holmes, and was chared by P M White The Commitiee
reviews the sze, structure and composttion of the Board and Committees and makes recommendations to the Board with regard
to any changes that are considered necessary The Committee also reviews the time required of Non-Exscutive Directors

The Nomination Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the formal selection and appointment of Directors and
considers succession planning for the Board In considenng an eppaintment, the Nomination Committee evaluates the balance
of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and prepares a dascription of the role and capabillities required for a particular
appontment In dentifying suitable candidates, open adverising or external search agencies will be used by the Committee,
where appropriate 1t also considers potential candidates and recommends appointments of new Directors to the Board The
appointments are based on merit and made against objective criteria including the time available and commitment which will be
required of the potential Diractor
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APPOINTMENT AND SELECTION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued}

In choosing new Non-Executive Directors, the Commuittae starts by obtaining the views of its professional advisors The Committes
has the power to employ the services of such advisors as 1t deems necessary in order to carry out its responsibilities and may retain
appropriate executive search consultants having prepared a job specdication for the role

Performance Evaluation Appraisal

Annually the Non-Executive Directors are appraised indwidually by the Chaiman, and the Board, led by the serior Non-Exacutive
Director, together appraise the Chairman In 2009, il members of the Board completed a questionnaire regarding Board processes
end performance The Chalrman reported the collactive findings to the Board and agreed acticns required The Audit, Remuneration
end Nomination Committee Chalrmen appraise therr parformance in a similar way on an annual basis

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Qolng Concern

After making enquines, the Directors have formed a judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements, that there 1s a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future In
forming this view, tha Directors have reviewed trading and cashflow forecasts and have also taken into consideration that the Group's
banking facilities remain available to them and are eppropriate given the Group's current trading and medium-term plans Further
details surrounding the Directors’ rationale regarding the golng concem assumption are included In Principal Accounting Policies on
page 40 For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

Audit Committee

The Audit Committes compnses J E Brown and W Holmes and throughout 2009 was chalred by J E Brown The Committes met
4 umes dunng 2009, with the Chief Executive, Finance Director and the internal and external auditors attanding as required

The Audit Committea has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control during the year ended 31 December 2009 This
has included considaration of Group-wide risk assessment and of internal audit and internal control exercises undertaken throughout
the Group The Audit Committee has elso considerad reports from intermal and external auditors The Audit Committee has reported
the results of its work to the Board The Board has considered these reports when undertaking its review of the effactiveness of the
Group's system of internal control

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing a wide range of financial matters including the intenm and year end financial
statements, mattars relating to the external audit, corporate governance matters and monitoring the Group's internal and operational
controls The Audlt Committea's tarms of reference are available from the Company Secretary

The Audit Commuttee has considered the arangements for the reporting by employees of concemns about possible impropnaties in
financial reporting or other matters, as set out in the Employee Handbook, and has concluded that there is & reasonably clear and
adequately defined system for reporting of concerns This policy and system of reporting will be reviewed annually

The aucitors are permitted to provide non-audit services that ara not, or are not perceived to be, in conflict with auditor independence
Part of the Committea's responsibliity in relation to external auditors is to review the nature of their independence and the extent of
the non-audit services they provide The report from Deloitte LLP confirming their independence and objectivity was reviewed by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Finance Director The level of faes paid to Deloitte LLP for non audit services has been
considerad by the Audit Committee and is not perceived to be in conflict with auditor iIndependence

Deloitte LLP have been external auditors for four years The Audit Committee assesses and considers the frequency of changing
auditors based on therr assessmant of the audit No contractua) obhgations exist which restrict the Audit Committea’s choice of
Auditor

The Committea conducted a formal evaluation of the effectivenass of the external audit process and held independent meetings
with the external auditors, and has reported on its conclusions to the Board The Committee has recommended to the Scard the
re-appointment of the external auditors Non-audit services are placed with whichever firm is believed to deliver the best value for
money, having regard to our external auditors’ independence if Deloitte LLP were to be appointed

{nternal Control

The Code requires the Company to mantan a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company's assets The Board must review the effectiveness of the system at least annually, covenng all matenal controls, mcluding
financial, operational and compliance controls and nsk management systerns, and report to shareholders that it has done so The
Turnbull Report, adapted by the UK Listing Authority, provides guidance for compllance with that part of the Code

The Board confirms that there Is an ongaing process for identfying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the
Company Steps are being taken to embed internal control and risk management further into the operations of the businesses and to
deal with areas of improvement which come to management'’s and the Board’s attention. The process has been in place throughout
the year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts It is regularty reviewed by the Board and accords with
the guidelines set out in the Tumbul! Report
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Statements on Corporate Governance

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal Control {continued)

The Board confirms that the actions it considers necessary have been or are being taken to remedy such fallings and weaknesses
which it has determuned to be significant from its review of the systern of internal control  This has mvolved considering the
matters reported to it and developing plans and programmes that It considers are reasonable in the cicumstances The Directors
acknowledge that they are responsible for the Group’s system of intemnal control, for setting policy on nternal control and for
reviewing the effactiveness of internal controf  The role of management 1s to implemeant Board policies on ngk and ¢control The system
of internal control is designed to manage rather than efiminate the risk of failure to achleve business objectives, and can only provide
reasanable, and not absaluta, assurance against matenal misstatement or toss

The Group has en internal audit function that reports to the Audit Commuttee Detailed control procedures exist throughout the
operations of the Group and compliance is monitored by management, internal auditors, and, to the extent that they consider
necessary to support their audit report, extarmat auditors

Relstions with Sharehoiders

The Company places conslderable importance on communications with shareholders and responds to them on a wide range of
1ssues It has an ongoing programme of dialogue and meetings with major institutional shareholders, where a wide range of relevant
issues including strategy, performance, management and governance are discussed The Chairman makes himself available to maet
any major sharsholder, as required

All Company announcements are posted on our wabsite www lookers co uk as soon as they are released Our website contains
a dedlicated investor relations section, www lookersplc com, with an archive of past announcements and prasentations, histoncal
financial performance, share price data and a calendar of avents

The principal commurucation with private investors s through the Annual Review, the Intenm Report and the Annual General Meeting

A presentation is made at the Annual General Meeting to facilitate greater awareness of the Group's activities Shareholders are given
the opportunity to ask questons of the Board and of the Chairman of each Board Committes and to meet the Directors informally
atter the mesting Separate resclutions are proposad for each tem of business and the ‘for’, *against’ and ‘vote withheld' proxy votes
cast i respect of each resolution proposed at tha Mesting are countad and announced after the shareholders present have voted
on each rasolution Notice of the Annual General Meeting 13 posted to shareholders at least twenty one days before the date of the
Annual Ganeral Meating
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Corporate Social Responsibility Review

CORPORATE SCCIAL RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Man Board of Lookars 13 responsible for setting the Group's strategy, values and standards regarding social, environmental
and ethical ssues It delegates the responsibllity for implementing strategy and mstis values and standards throughout the Group's
businesses The operating compantes each mclude socal, environmental and ethical issues in ther nsk assessment processes This
enables the Main Board to ensure that any potential problemns are klentfied and centingency stratagies are in place

Lookers and the Environment

Lookers’ activities do have an impact on the environment. The Group 13 keen to fulfi! s legal obligations on this issue and has a
Group-wide environmental policy in place The need to deal with contamination, wasta ofl and asbestos issues is at the forefront of
the Group's concems.

On a wider lavel, Lookers supports a number of industry inttiatives and the Group also engages m all environmental issues raised by
stakeholders, consumers, suppliers, sharehokders and employees

Tha Group aims to encourage the reduction of energy and water consurnption and actively investigates employees' suggestions to
help reduce the amount of waste An electrical testing montonng regime 13 in force throughout the Group  Use of the latest buillding
materials is made in the construction of new sites end the refurbishment of existing locations For instance, modem heating controls
include both timers and thermostats

Lookers aims to improve its energy, water and fuel efficiency over the coming year throughout the Group's operations As part of this
policy, the Group s working in partnershup with a major energy management systerns company to help create a better environment
by reducing the amount of harmtul emissions relsased into the atmosphere for averyone’s future benefit Savings of up to 30% in
annual heating spend can be achieved as well as producing a comfortabie working emaronment for staff The system 1s recognisad
for ISO 14001

Lookers and Ethics

Lookers belioves that imtegnty i s relationships with customers, suppliers, staff, shareholders, regulatory agencies and the
community is important and gains the respect of all its stakeholders Treating Customers Fawly Is now embedded into the Group’s
ethos and wil continue to be part of the Group's cutturs

Lookers makes avery effort to ensure its people are aware of these expectations and that they contnbute to the high standards
required of them This statement, together with Lookers' corporate values, is at the heart of how Lockers conducts rts business,
extarnally In its relationships with stakeholders and internally through its performance management and promotion processes

Lockers a3 an Employer
Peaplo are cructal to Lookers’ success This approach s reflacted m Lookers' policies on recrutment and retention, staff share
schame, stafl commurnication, and health and safety

Recruitment and Retention

Lookers ensures that it has falr employment terms for its peopla Employment handbooks set out formal policies for key issues such
a3 equal opportunities, disciplnary and gnevance procedures, sexual, religious and racial harassment

Lookers' Human Rescurses Director ks responsible for raising employment standards and implementing best practice employment
policies throughout the orgarisation. Perfornance reviews are conducted at least once a year and include an assessment of each
indvidual’s training needs

Lookers has a comprehensive training programme for its people which has received industry recognition in the form of national
awards for the automotive industry

Staff Communication

Lookers believes that its people have a nght to be kept informed Regular discussions take place to keep people updated and to
ssek out therr ideas and opinions

Face-to-face dialogue between managers and staft takes place regularly, information 18 communicated through Lookers' intranet,
which s used by over 50% of employees avery week. Lookers also uses newsletters and updates to keep lts staff informed

Heazlth and Safety

Lockers aims to do oll that s reasonably practicable to ensure the health, safety and welfare of #ts people, and uthers who may be
affected by its activities The Main Board maintans ultrmate responsibility for health and safety issues at Lookers with the manager
responsible for tha day-to-day responsibility, supported by all favels of management This polcy is defined in the Group's Health and
Safety policy statement and all staff are Issued with, or have access to, a detailed health and safety guide

The stalistics for the Group, under UK Health and Safety regulations for the year ended 31 Cecember 2009, are set out below

2000
Number of fatalities -
Injunes resulting in absence over three days 23
Major injurles reported under RIDDOR* 3
Dangerous occurrences raportad under RIDDOR* 1

Number of anforcement notices issued by HSE -
Nurmnber of prohibition notices issued by HSE -

*Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995

Lookers end the Community
Lookers 13 committad to playmg an active role in the communites t serves. All Lookers® busmesses operate ther own communy
programmes end fund raising charity evenits. In addition, some charities are supported at a Group level such as the motor trades’ BEN
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared In accordance with Schedule 8 of the Accounting Regulations under the Comparues Act 2006
The report also meets tha relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and describas how the
Board has applied the principles relating to Directors’ remuneration in the Combined Code As required by thea Act, a resolution
to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual General Mesting of the company at which the financial statements will be
approved The Act require the auditors to report to the company’s members on certain parts of the Directors’ Remuneration
Raport and 1o state whether w1 their opinion thesa parts of the report have been properly prepared In accordance with the
Accounting Regulations The report has therefore been divided into separate sections for audited and unauditad information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committea 15 responsible for reviewing and recommending the framework and policy for remuneration of
the Exscutive Directors and of senior management The Remuneration Committee's terms of reference are avalable from the
Company Secretary The members of the Remuneration Committee during the financtal year were W Holmes (Chairman), J E
Brown and P M White W Holmes end J E Brown are independent Non-Exacutive Directors of the Board

Remuneration Policy

The policy of the Committes is to ensure that the Directors are fairrly rewarded for their individual contributions to the Group's
overall performance and to provide a competitive remuneration package to Executive Directors, including long-term incentive
plans and granting of share options to attract, retain and motivate individuals of the calibre required and ensure that the Group is
managed successfully in the interests of shareholders

When selecting appropriate compansons, the Committes has regard to the Group's revenue, market worth and business sector
No Director plays a part in any decislon about his own remuneration Full details of Oirectors’ remuneration, fees and share
options are set out on pages 35 and 36 Directors retiring by rotation are shown in the Directors’ Report on page 25 None of the
Executive Diractors currently has any long-term incentives other than the Performance Share Plan (“PSP”") which was approved
at the Annual Genera! Meeting in May 2008

Tha Remuneration Committes, In determining remuneration policy, has given full consideration to Section B of the best practice
provisions annexed to the Listing Rules of the Financial Serwices Authority

The Company's policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance
ralated The annual bonus scheme enablas the Executive Directors to earn annual incentive payments on a shding scale up to
100% of therr basic salary The main elements of therr remuneration package are set out below

Basic Annual Satary and Benefits In Kind
Each Executive Director's basic salary ts reviewed annually by the Committee In deciding upon appropriate levels of remuneration,
the Committee has regard to rates of pay for similar positions i comparable companies

Annual Bonus Payments
All Executive Directors particlpate In an annual bonus scheme payable upon the Group exceeding predetermined prof#t level
targets and at the discretion of tha Remuneration Committee Bonus payments are not pensionable

Peansion Arrangements

The Group operates a definad benefit scheme for its full-time employees O V Dyson, who resigned on 19 May 2009 and B
Schumacker were members of the scheme for part of the year and A. C Bruce remains & member of this scheme which provides
a pension of up to two-thirds of fina! pensionable salary on retirement a2t age 60 years The defined benefit scheme also provides
lump sum death-in-service benefit and pension beneafits based on final pensionable salary H K Surgenor, P Jones, R A,
Gregson, B Schumacker and T M Wainwnght participate in money purchase arrangements

Share Option Incentives

The Comparty operated three share option schemes under which the Executive Diractors and senior executives can be granted
discrelionary options from time to time by the Board together with a savings related share option scheme (“SAYE") open to
employees in general These thres schemes were approved at the Annual General Mesting in May 2008

Performance Share Plan

Selected Executive Diractors as detailed on page 36 participate in the PSP, which was approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting in May 2008

Annual awards under the PSP are in the form of a contingent grant of shares, the vesting of which will be subject to tn-annual
performance cnterla For the 2008 award the performance periad is for the 3 years to 31 December 2010 based upon adjusted
earnings per share growth targets There was no award in 2009
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UNAUDITED INFORMATICN {continuga)

Performance Share Plan (continued)

Performance s measured on earnings per share growth over the three year period and shares will vast where the growth in
earnings per share of the Company has exceaded the growth n the Retal Pnce Index (“RPI") by 10% or more Participating
Exacutives will receive a percentage of the contingent share award dependent upon the level of growth over and above the RPI
At 10% over the RPI, participating Executives may earn 25% of tha contingent share award A stepped scale 1s then applied up
to a maximum of 120% of the contingent award if the increase 1n earnings per share over the period 1s $0% over and above the
APl The relevant percentage will be applied to the Executives’ contingent share award at the end of the performance period to
armve at any shares to ba 1ssued

Directors’ Contracts

The details of the Directors’ indmidual service contracts are set out in the tabla below In the event of termination of an Executive
Director's service contract, depending upon the circumstances, the Company may be hable to pay compensation to the Executive
Director equivalent to the salary that would have been received during the contract period, together with any bonus earned on a
pro rata basig to the date of termination The Company's policy in the avent of the termination of an Executive Dirgctor's senice
contract 3 not to make any payment to an Exacutive Director in excess of ther contractual entitlement and so aim to ensure that
any liability 1s mitigated to the fullest extent possible

Dates of Contract Notice Perlod Contractual Termination Payments
P Jones 22 February 2010 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term
R A Gregson 22 February 2010 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term
B Schumacker 11 May 2006 1 Year Basic salary and benafits for unexpired term
A C Bruce 11 May 2008 1 Year Basic salary and benefits for unexpired term
T M Wanwnght 14 December 2008 1 Year Basic salary and bengfits for unexpired term

All contracts are rolling contracts

Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is detarmined by the Board within the fimits set out in the Articles of Association
and as prewviously approved by the members Non-Executive Diractors cannot participate in the Company's share option
schemes and are not eligible for pension arrangements

Performance Graph

The following graph shows the Group's performance, measured by total shareholder return  The Group has been benchmarked
against the FTSE Small-Cap Indax which is considered to be an appropriate companson to other public companies of a similar
BIZe.
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AUDITED INFORMATION
Directors’ Emoluments

Compaenaation Pension Penision
Annual Benefits- for loss of 2005 2008 Contribuions  Contributions
Fess Satary Bonus in-kind Otfice Total Total 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
P M White 100 - 10 - - 110 100 - -
H K Surgenor (1} - 315 315 15 - 645 440 - -
D V. Dyson {2) - 112 - 8 325 445 284 2 53
P Jones - 252 252 16 - 820 125 48 -
B Schumacker - 184 184 14 - 382 200 40 38
A. C Bruce - 184 184 16 - 384 204 37 36
T M Wanwright - 184 92 27 - 303 238 23 23
R A_ Gregson (3) - 143 143 7 - 283 - 29 -
J E Brown ar - - - - ar 35 - -
D C A. Bramall 35 - - - - 35 35 - -
W Holmes 35 - - - - 35 18 - -
Totat 207 1,374 1,180 103 325 3,189 1,679 200 148

{1} Retired on 30 Saptember 2003
{2) Resigned on 19 May 2009
{3) Appointed on 19 May 2009

With effect from 1 Apnl 2006, the Company ceased making contnbutions to the pension arrangements of H K Surgenor, his
basic salary being increased by an equivalent amount in lieu of such contnbutions This resulted from the change in pension
arrangemaents following the rule changes referrad to as ‘pension simplfication” from € April 2006 ‘A’ day)

The cost to the Company of these amended arangements 13 unchanged The Company made payments in heu of pension
contnbuticns to H K. Surgenor of £36,000 (2008 £48,000)

Benefits-in-kind include ltems such as a company car, fuel and Ife assurance premiums Detals of Directors’ shareholdings are
shown in the Diractors’ Report on page 24 Thae relative impartance of performance and non-parformance elements of remuneration
are set out within the Remunaeration Policy

Directors’ Pension Entitlement
Set out below are details of the pension benafits to which each of the Exscutive Directors 13 entitled

Trengier valus
Additions! acerusd 34 Decombar 2009
banefita sarned Accrued  or date of transferring Transfer value  Increasef{docrspse}
In the year entitlement out of the scheme 31 Decemnber 2008 in transfer vahie
£000 £000 000 £000 £000
B Schumacker - 51 1,104 1,121 n
A C Bruce 3 29 3715 272 103

B Schumacker transferred out of the scheme on 31 January 2009

Pension increases are In fine with Limited Pnce Indexation Death-in-sarvice pays at four times salary and death-in-retirement
pays benefits at 50% The accrued pension entitiement 1s the amount that the Ourector would recerve if he retired at the end of the
year The increase in the transfer value is the difference between the accrued benefit at the year end and that at the previcus year
end All transfer values have been calcutated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11
The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to the individual Director Instead they represent a
potential hatulity of the pension scheme

Additiona) sccrued Trenster value of

Incrsass in
year (excluding Inflation) sccrued benefits
£000 £000

7

B Schumacker -
A C Bruce 2 24
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AUDITED INFORMATION (continued)

Directors’ Share Options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed do not nclude any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company
granted to, or held by, the Directors Details of the Directors’ share ophions are as follows

Earllest Exearclae

Date of Exsrcise Expiry price Number at Lapasd Number at

Schame Grent Date Data {pence) 1 Janusry 2009 In Year 31 December 2009

H K. Surgenor PSP 236 2008 236201 22862018 - 630,000 - 630,000
B Schumacker PSP 23 6 2008 2362011 22 62018 - 276,000 - 276,000
A.C Bruce PSP 2362008 2362011 22 6 2018 - 276,000 - 276,000
T M Wainwright PSP 2362008 236 201 22682018 - 276,000 - 276,000
P Jones PSP 23 6 2008 23 6 2011 2262018 - 161,000 - 161,000

The only options outstanding at 31 December 2009 are in respect of the PSP Details of performance conditions attaching to
the FSP are set out on pages 33 and 34

The mud-market pnce of the ordinary shares at 31 December 2009 was 489 Op and the range dunng the year was 18 §p to
69 Op

Qains made by Directors on Share Optiocns
There were no gains made by Directors durlng 2009 (2008 Enil)

Directors’ Interests in the Performance Share Plan

Bonuses under the PSP are payable in shares, with a conditional award of shares capable of being made annually, based on
the Executive's salary at the start of each performance period Details of the perforrnance condition of the PSP can be found on
pages 33 and 34 Detalls of the conditonal awards to the Exacutive Diractors under the PSP are shown in the table of Directors’
shara options above

The Company's Register of Directors’ Interests contains full details of Directors® shareholdings and options to subscribe

8y Order of the Bo

L] N Py,
R A Gregson
Company Secretary

9 March 2010
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’' Responsibilities

The Directors are responsitle for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable taw and |
regulattons
|
|
|

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial staternents for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs™) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have also elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements i
accordance with I[FRSs as adopted by tha European Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of tha state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for
that period In preparing these financial statements, Intarnational Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

. properly select and apply accounting policies,

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

. provide additional disclosures when compllance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users

to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial positicn and
financial performance, and
. make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concemn

The Directors are rasponsible for keeplng adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for tha prevention and detection of fraud and other lrregularities

The Directors ara respansible for the matntenance and integnity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurscictions

Responsibllity statament

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

. the financial statements, prepared (n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, gve a true end fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial postion and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the
consalidation taken as a whole, and

. the management report, which 15 incorporated into the Diractors’ Repont, includas a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of tha company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as a whole, together with a descnption of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face

By Crder of the Board
g\ oo

P. Jones R. A. Gregson
Chief Exacutive Finance Director
9 March 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LOOKERS PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Lookers plc for the year ended 31 December 2009 which comprise the Principal
Accounting Policies, the Group and Parent Company Income Statements, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Parent Company Consolidated Statement of Comprahensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow
Statements, Group and Company Statements of changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 32 The financial reporting
framework that has been apphed in thelr praparation is applicable law and International Financlal Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auvdrtors' report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for tha opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained mora fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with apphcable law and Internationa! Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards reguire us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining svidence about the amounts and disclosuras in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whather caused by fraud or eror  This includes
an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s and the parent company's cireumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financlal statements

In our opirvon

. the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at
31 December 2009 and of the group's profit and the parent company’s loss for the year then ended,

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
and

. the financial statements have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,

as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

. the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repoert to ba audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and
. the mformation given in the Directors® Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared s

consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the foltowing

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visted by us, or

. the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting racords and returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not rmade, or

. wa have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review
. the diractors’ statement contalned within the Director's Report In relation to going concern, and
the part cf the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the

@Combmed Code specified for our review

Patrick Loftus (Senior Statutory Audmor)
for and behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audtors
Manchester, United Kingdom

9 March 2010
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Principal Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have
been consistently applied to all years presented, unless stated otherwise

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Lookers plc 15 a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the regrsterad
office I3 glven at the front of these accounts The nature of the Group's operations and its pnncipal activities are set out in
note 1 of the Directors’ Report

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared In accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted by the European Union Therafore the group financial stataments comply with article 4 of EU IAS Regulation
as adopted for use in the EU

The Group has adopted Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board [!ASB) and
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes of the IASB Individual standards and interpretations have
to be adoptad by the European Commission {EC) and the process leads to a delay between the issue and adoption of new
standards and in some cases amendment by the EC

International Financial Reporting Standards are subjact to ongoing amendmant by the IASB and subsequent endorsement by
the EC and ara therefore subject to change

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis

ADOPTICN OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
In the curent year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted and have affected the
amounts reported in the financial statements

IAS 1 {revised 2007}
Presentation of financial statements 1AS 1 (revised 2007) has introduced a number of changes in the format and content of
the financial statements

Specifically, IAS 1 requires an entity to present a statement of financlal position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period 1n a completa set of financial statements whan the entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a
ratrospective restatement, or when the entity reclassifies tems in the financial statements Dunng the current year, the Group
adopted IFRS B 'Operating Segments’ Howaver, the Directors consider that because the adoption of the standard has no
impact on the balance shest, no presentation of a third balance sheet s raquired

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’
IFRS 8 18 a disclosure Standard that has had no effect on the Group's reportable segments No adjustment to segmental
disclosures has ansen from this transition

Amendments to IFRS 7

Financia! Instruments Disclosuras The amandments to IFRS 7 expand the disclosures raquired In respect of fair value
measurements and hquidity risk. The Group has elected not to provide comparative information for these expanded
disclosures In the current year in accardance with tha transitional reliefs offered in these amendments

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements the followaing standards and interpretations which have not been
applied in these financial statements, were In issue but not yet effective

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Revisad Standard

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures - Amendment

1AS 1 Presentetion of Financial Statements - Amendment

IAS 27 Consolidated Separate Financial Statements

IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement - Amendment
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non Cash Assets to Owners

[FRS 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future peniods will have no matenal impact
on the financial statements of the Company

Going Concem
This financial mformation has been prepared on a going concern basis which the Directors believe to be appropnate for the
reasons set out below

The Company and ths Group meet their day to day working capital raquirements through short-term stocking loans and the
revalving credit faciity and medium-term funding requirements through a term loan The facilities in place at the year end were
established by renegotiating the prior facilities in May 2009 and June 2009 As noted in The Chairman’s Revtew, the Group
successiully raised £77 million from an equity raising which has significantly reduced the Company's debt
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Principal Accounting Policies

At the year end the medium-term banking facilities included a revolving cradit facility of up to £53 3 mullion and a term loan
totalling £90 9 midlion, providing total facilties of £144 2 million

In addition to the tctal facility hmnt, the revised facilities include certain covenant tests The faiture of a covenant test would
render the entre facilities repayable on damand at the option of the lenders

The Directors have assessed the future funding requirements of the Group and the Company and compared them to the lave!
of committed available borrowing facilities This assessment included a detailed review of trading and cash flow forecasts
for a period In excess of one year from the date of this annual report which projact that the total revised facilty bt is
not exceeded over the duration of the forecasts Whilst acknowledging the uncertainties in the operating environment, as
discussed in The Directors’ Report, the Directors have prepared forecasts that make assumptions in respect of future trading
conditions and in particutar to volumas and margins of new and used car sales, aftersales and parts, achleving operational
improvements and cost reductions

In addition to this the nature of the Group's business is such that there can be vanation in the timing of cash inflows as
trading patterns develop, in particular the March and Septamber registration periods The forecasts bave been prepared cn
the assumption that short-term stocking facilities with stocking flnance providers of £88 million and normal manufacturer
consignment stock facilities will remain available to the Group throughout the next 12 months The forecasts take into
account the aferementioned factors to an extent which the Directors consider to be reasonable, based on the mformation
that 1s available to them at the time of approval of this financial information

In the event that additional funds are required in excess of the proposed faciities as a result of the Group not substantially
achieving s forecasts, the Directors would have to supplement, renew or replace those faciities with facilities that are
appropriate to the Group's ongoing raquirements

The Directors have a reascnable expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future For those reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern basls i
praparing this Annug! Report

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncat cost basis, axcept for the revaluation of certain properties and
financial instruments The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Pensiona

The liability recogrused in the batance sheet in respect of the Group's ratirament benefit obligations represents the liabilities of
the Group's defined benefit pansion schemes after deduction of the far value of the related assets The schemaes' liabilities
are denved by estimating the uttimate cost of benefits payable by the schemes and reflecting the discountad value of the
proportion accrued by the year end in the balance sheet In order to arrive at these estimatas, a number of key financial and
non-financlal assumptions are made by managemsnt, changes to which could have a matenal impact upon ths net deficit
and also the net cost racognised in tha Income Statement

The principal assumptions relate to the rate of inflation, mortality and the discount rate The assumed rate of inflation 13
impartant because this affects the rate at which salaries grow and therefore the size of the pension that employees receive
upon retirement Over the longer term, rates of inflation can vary significantty

The overall benefits payable by the schemes will also depend upon the length of time that members of the schemes live for;
the longer they rermam alive, the higher the cost of the pension benefits to bs met by the schemes Assumptions are mada regarding
the expectad lifetime of the schemes’ rmembers, basad upon mecent national expenence However, given the rates of advance in
medical sclence, it Is uncertain whether these assumptions will prove to be accurate in practice

The rate used to discount the resulting cash flows is equivalent to the market yield at the balance sheet date on high quality bonds
with a similar duration to the schemes Gabilities. This rate is potentially subject to significant variabon The net cost recogrised in the
Income Statement is also affected by the expected return on the schemes' assets. This s detarmined on the bases of the assst mix
within the schames at the beginning of the year and the market expectations for the retum on each asset type The mmpact of the
pension estmates on the Group's accounts can be seen n note 28

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Group reviews the goodwill arising on the acquistion of subsidlaries or businesses and any intanglble assets with an indefinte
fife for mparment at least annually or when events or changes in economic circumnstances indicate that impainment may have
taken place. The mpairment review is performed by projechng the future cash flows, excluding finance and tax, based upon
budgets and plans and making appropriate assumptions about rates of growth and discountng these using a rate that takes into
account prevaling market interast rates and the risks inherent in the business. If the present value of the projected cash flows is less
than the carmying value of the underlying net assets and related goodwill, an impairment charge would be required in the Income
Statemert.

This calculation requires the exercise of signdicant judgement by management, ¢ the estmates made prove to be mcormmect or

changes m the performance of the subsidianes affect the amount and tming of future cash flows, goodwill may become mpawed in
future penods
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Principal Accounting Policies

7.

In respact of acquisitions, at the pont of acquisition the Group is required to assess whather intangible assets need to be separately
identfied and measured The measurement and assessment of the useful economic lives of ntangible essets requires the use of
judgement by managerment.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements compnse the accounts of the Company and #ts subsidiary undertakings. An undertalang
s regarded as a subsidiary f the Group has control over its operating and financia! policies. The profits and kosses of subsidiary
undertakngs are consolidated as from the effective date of acquistion or to the effective date of disposal.

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to account for the acquistion of subsidianes The cost of an acquistion I3
measured as the fair value of the assets acquirad, equity instruments issued and fiabllites incurred or assumed at the date of
compistion, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisttion. Identifiable assets acquired, [fabilties and cortingent labilities assumed
in a business combination are measured intially at thelr far values at the acquisition date, mespectve of the extent of any mmerity
interest The axcess of the cost of acquisition over the fair valus of the Group's share of the identfiable net assets acquired s
recordad as goodwill. if the cost of acquisition 1s less than the farr value of the net asssts of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the Income Statement

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are elmmnated Unrealised
losses are also elrmmnated undess the transaction provides evidence of an mparment of the asset transferred Accounting policies of
acquired subsidianies are changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenus is measured at invoice price, excluding value added taxes, and principally comprises external vehiclo sales, parts, servicng
and bodyshop sales Vehicle and parts sales are recognised when substantiafly all risks and rewards have been transferrad to
the customer This is generally at the time of dellvery to the customer Service and bodyshop sales are recogrused n fine with the
work performed Revenue also compnises commissions receivable for arranging vehicle financing and retated insurance products
Commissions are based on agreed rates and income Is recognised at the time of approval of the vehicle finance by the finance
provider Whera the Group is actng as agent on beha!f of a principal, the commission eamed is also recorded at an agreed rate when
the transaction has occurred

SEGMENTAL REFORTING

A business segment 13 a group of assets and operations engaged in prowiding goods and services that s subject to nsks and retumns
that are different fromn those of cther busness segments The business segments ane set out m note 1 As noted i the Basis of
Preparation, the Group adopted IFRS B ‘Operating Segments’ dunng the penod No adjustment to the Group's Business Segments
has ansen as a rasult of the transition from IAS 14 '‘Segmental Reporting'

A geographical segment is engaged in providing goods and services within a particular economic environment that &s subject to nsks
and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other aconomic environments

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Exceptional tems are tems that are unusua! because of their size, nature or incidence and which the Group's management considers
should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's results

GOODWILL ARISING ON CONSOLIDATION

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquistion over the far value of the Group's share of the net identrfiable assets of
the acquired entity at the date of the acquisition. Goodwill on acquisihons of subsidiaries is shown sepamtely on the balance sheet
Goodwill arising on acquistions ts tested annually for impairment and 1s camed at cost less accumuiated impairment losses

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired on a business combination are capitalisad separately from goodwill if the asset is separable and if far
value can be measured rellably on inthal recognition Intangble assets so acquired are carrled at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impalmment losses Amortsation 13 providad on a straight ine basis to allocate the cost of the asset over its estimated useful
life. The useful [fe of customer relationships 1s expacted to be up to 20 years, and the useful lives of acquired brands vary between
5 years and ndefintta life The Group has no mtemally generated intangible assats

10. INVESTMENTS

investments hekd as fixed assets ara stated at cost less provision for mparment.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assats are stated at their desmed cost less depreciztion. With the exception of certan properties which were revalued on
31 December 2003, all assets are rocorded at histoncal cost. The basis of the revaluation, bemg open markat value was, in the
opmion of the Directors, approximate to far value and has been adopted as deemed cost on transition to IFRS, The Group has
adopted the cost model under IAS 16, 'Property plant and equipment *
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Principal Accounting Policies

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Freehold buildings and long leasshold properties are depreciated over 50 years on a straight line basis to their estmated residual
values. Short leasehold properties are amortsad by equal instalments over the periods of the raspective leases
Plant and machinery (including motor vehucles), fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment (including computer aguipment and terminals),
are depraciated on a straight line basis at rates varying between 10% and 33% per annumn over ther estimated useful lives
Property, plant and equiprnent are transferred to “Assets held for sale™ when management expect therr dispesal to be complated
within one year from the balance sheet date Noncurrent assets classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of net book value
or expected procaeds

12, IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Assets that have an indefinite Iife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impalment. Asssts subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes n crcumstances indleate that the camying amount may not
be recoverable. An impamment loss 1s recognisad for the amount by which the asset’s camrying amount exceeds its recoverable
ameunt. The recoverable amount 15 the hugher of an asset's tar vahue less disposal costs, and value m use

13. LEASES
Assets purchased under hire purchase contracts ara caprtahiged i the balance sheet and are depreciated over their useful ives, The
interest element of the rental obligation 1s charged to the Income Statement so as to give a constant rate of charge on the remainuing
balance ¢f the obligation
Rental costs under operating leases ara charged to the Income Statement in equal annual amounts over the periods of the leases.

14. INVENTORIES
inventories are valued at the lower of purchasa pnce and net realisabls value. Deposits paid for vehicles on consignment represent
bulk deposits pad to manufacturers. The Group recognises consignment stock in s balance sheet when there has been a
substantial transfer of the nsks and rewards of ownership The related liabflities are mcluded in trade payables

15. TAXATION
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defemed tax. The tax cumently payable 13 based on taxable
profit for the year Taxable profit dffers from net profit as repcrted in the Income Staterment because it excludes tems of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and ¢ further excludes itams that are never taxable or deductbla The Group’s
bability for cumment tax s calcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the lability method, on taxable temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and [fabliities and ther carrying amounts in the consoldated financial statements However, if the deferred tax arises from Invhial
racognition of an asset or liability in a transaction cther than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or koss, it 8 not accounted for Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset s realised
or the deferred tax liabilty is settled Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available agamst which the temporary differences can be utiised Deferrad tax is not provided on temporary differences ansing
on nvestments m subsidianes, as the Group controls the tming of the reversal of the temporary difference ard it 18 probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

168, PENSION COSTS
The Group operates the “Lookers Pension Plan” and the “Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan” which are definad benefit pension
schemes providing bensfits based on final pensionable salary The defined benefit schemes define the amount of pension benefit
that an employee will recerva on retirement, dependent on one or more factors including age, years of sarvice and salary Both
schemas are closed to new members

The kast triennlal valustion of the “Lookers Pension Plan” was camed out at 31 December 2007 by Mercer Human Resource
Consulting Limited and has been updated to 31 Dacember 2008 by a qualfied independant actuary to take account of IAS 19
requirements. The last tnennial valuation of the “Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan” was camed out at 31 March 2007 by KPMG
LLP and has been updated to 31 Decernber 2009 by a qualified independent actuary to take account of IAS 15 requirements.

Under LAS 19, the defined benefit deficits are inchuded on the Group's balance sheet. Liabilities are calculated based on the cument
yiekds on high quality corporate bonds and on market conditions. Surphuses are only nchsded to the extent that they are recoverable
through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the schemea,

The current servica cost and any past-service costs are included in the Income Statement within operating costs The expected retum
on tha schemes' assets, net of the impact of the unwinding of the discount on schermes’ iabilties, 18 includad within finance costs

Actuarial gains and losses arfsing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assurmptions are charged or creditad, net of
deferred tax, each year to reserves and shown in the Statement of Recognised income and Expense.

Past-service costs are recogrused mmediately m income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditonal on the employees
remamning in service for a specified period of tme (the vesting penod). In ths case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-
[ine basis over the vesting penod.

The Group also prowdes pension amangements for employees and certain Directors under defined contribution schemes.
Contributions for these schemes are chargad to the Income Statement in the year in which they are payable.
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse deposits with banks and financial insttutions, bank
and cash balances, and liquid investments, net of bank cverdrafts. In the balance shest, bank overdrafts are included in current
borrowings

18. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certan ermployees. Equity-settied share-based payrnents are measured
at farr value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditrons) at the date of grant. The far value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-iine basis over the vesting penod, basad on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventuafly vest and adjusted for the effect of non-markst-hased vesting conditions

Fakr value 13 measured by use of the Black Scholes model. The expected life used n the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best astimate, for the effects of non-trensferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group enters nto a vanety of dervative financial nstruments to manage ts exposure to nterest rate and foreign exchange rate
nsk, including forward foreign exchange contracts and an interest rate coflar Further details of denvative financial instruments are
disclkased i note 20 to the financial statements,

Derivatves are intially recogmsed at far value on the date a denvative contract 18 entered into and are subsaquently remeasured
to ther far value &t each reporting date The resulting gan or toss is recognised in the Income Statement immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event, tha timing of the recognition in the Income Statement
depends on the nature of the hadge relationship The Group designates certain dervatives as hedges of highly probable forecast
transactions or hedges of foraign currency nsk of firm commitments (cash fiow hedges)

The far value of hedging dervatives is classified as a non-cument asset or a non-current Eability if the remaning matunty of the hedge
relaticnship 13 maore than 12 months and as a current asset or a current kability f the remaming maturity of the hedge relatonship
less than 12 months

Denvatves not designated into an effectve hedge relationship are classified as a current asset or a current bability

20, EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD
The effective Interest method is a method of calcuiating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating Interest income over
tha relavart penod The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial assat, or, where appropriate, a shorter period

Debt instruments that are held-to-matunty, are available for sala or are lcans and recaivables recognised in income on an effective
interest rate basis

Loans and Receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinabla payments that are not quoted i an active market are
classdied as ‘loans and recenvables’ |_pans and recenvables are measured at amortised cost using the effectve interest method less
impairment.

Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-termn receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impatrment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than thosse at farr value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impainment at each balance sheet
date Financial assets are impared where there I3 objective evidence that, es a resutt of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recogrution of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been mpacted For loans and
recevables the amount of the mpasment 1s the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value of estimated
tuture cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective mterest rate

The carymg amount of the financial asset 13 recuced by the mparment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade roceivables whera the carrying amount Is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trada recsivable is
uncollactable, it 18 written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recovenas of amounts previously wntten off are creditad
aganst the allowance account. Changes in the camying amount of the aowance account are recogrised in profit or loss

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUED BY THE GROUP
Debt Instruments
Debt Instruments are classified as ether financial Eshilitles or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
amangement.

Financial Liabilities
Financal kabifities are classified as erther financial fiabilibes *at far value through profit or loss® or other financial liabilties
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Income Statements

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Nots m £m m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 1,749.0 1,775 9 - -
Cost of sales {1,487.9) (1,533 8) - -
Gross profit 261.1 2421 - -
Distribution costs (139.5) (160 1) - -
Administrative axpenses (92.7) {721) (24 0) (129)
Other operating Income 0.4 03 16.1 197
Profit/{loss) from operations 29.3 102 {7.9) 68
Profit from operations before amortisation
and exceptional items 45.1 339 43 106
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 {1.n {14) {0.8) {0 4}
impalrment of goodwill 8 - {3 1) - -
Exceptional items from operations 3 {14.1) {19 2) {11.4) (3 4)
Profit/(loss) from operations 293 102 {7.9) 68
Interest payable 2 (17 1) (21 2} {13.7) (120)
Interest receivable 2 0.3 13 56 58
Net interest {16.8) (199 (8.1) 62)
Exceptional interest payable on closed businesses 3 (0.1) {0 B} - -
Fair valus on darivative instruments - (4 0) - (4 4)
Debt 1ssue costs (0.9) 0 4) (0 9) 04)
Profit/{loss} on ordinary actmities before taxation 115 (14 9) (16 9) (a2
Profit before tax, amortisation,
exceptional items and dabt issue costs 28.3 140 (38) 44
Amortisation of intangible assets {1.7) (14) (0.8) (O 4)
Impairment of goodwill - 3N - -
Total exceptional tems 3 {14.2) 200) {114) (34)
Fair value on denvative instruments - {40 - {44)
Debt 1ssue costs {0.8} 04 (0.8} (04)
Profit/{loss) on ordinary actmties before taxation 3 115 (14 9) {16.9) 42
Exceptional tax charge - 72 - -
Tax (charge)credit excluding exceptional tax charge 4 (3 5) §1 55 17
Profit/(loss) for the year 8.0 (16 0) {11.4) (2 5)
Continuing operations
Earmings/(loss) per share
Basic earmings/(loss) per share 6 2.79p {7 68)p
Diited eamings/{loss) per share 5 2.72p 7 68)p
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note £m £m Em £m
Actuarial losses recognised In post-
retirement benefit schemes 28 (9.4) 1) [B.7 73
Movernent in deferred taxation on pension liabidity 23 17 0.6 20
Fair valug on derivative instruments 1.2 (11) (0.8) (11)
Net losses recognisad drrectly in equity 83) 55 (4.0) (6 4)
Profit/loss) for the financial year 8.0 {16 0) {11.4) 25
Total recognised 10 comprehensive income for the year {0.3) (21 5) {15.4) (8 9)
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Balance Sheets

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note £m (2] £m Em
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill 8 448 448 - -
Intangible assets 9 171 18 4 34 38
Property, plant and equipment 10 187.6 2058 0.4 05
Investment in subsidianes 11 - - 63.7 537
Defarred tax aaset 22 - - 7.4 50
259.5 2680 64.9 639
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 12 247.4 3037 - -
Trada and other receivables 13 108.3 843 193.4 2236
Cash and cash equivalents 15 123 21 20.7 82
Dervative financial instruments - 03 - -
Assets held for sala 16 9.2 54 - -
3762 3958 2141 2318
TOTAL ASSETS 634.7 664 8 279.0 2857
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilties
- Bank loans and overdrafts 19 10.4 100 10.0 100
- Hire purchase obligations 02 - - -
Trade and other payables 17 31581 an7z 431 585
Current tax hiabilties 18 88 45 8.0 48
Short-term provisions 21 0.8 16 - -
Denvative financial instruments 63 54 63 54
3417 3932 65 4 787
NET CURRENT ASSETS 335 26 148.7 1531
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial habilities
- Bank loans 19 80.9 1416 80.9 1485
Trade and other payables 17 46 54 - -
Retirament benefit obligations 28 355 277 18.2 161
Deferrad tax labilitias 22 12 133 - -
Long-term provisions 21 0.7 07 - -
1329 1887 99.1 164 8
TOTAL UABILITIES 474.6 581 8@ 164.5 2433
NET ASSETS 160.1 829 114,5 524
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 23 19.2 91 19.2 91
Share premium 24 73.8 62 73.8 62
Capital redempticn resarva 25 14,6 146 14,8 146
Other regerve 25 (1.4} {11} (1.1} (1t1)
Retained eamings 27 54.1 541 8.2 236
TOTAL EQUITY 160.1 829 1145 524

e financial statements on pages 40 to 74 wers approved by the Directors on 9 March 2010 Signed on behalf of the

irectors
@:‘ o

— .
P. Jones R. A. Greg
Olrector Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

C
Shars Share r.m;"h: Other Retained

capital premium FE3STVE reserve samings Totxd
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2008 91 56 146 04 818 1116
New shares issued - 06 - - - 06
Loss for the year - - - - (16 0} (16 0
Dividends - - - - 73) 73)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes {note 28) - - - - 61) (6 1)
Defarred taxation on pension habilty - - - - 17 17
Share based payments - - - Q% - (04)
Fer value on denvative mstruments - - - (11} - (1
As at 31 December 2008 91 82 146 11 541 829
New shares 18sued 101 67 4 - - - 7756
Profit for the year - - - - 80 80
Actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes (note 28) - - - - 94 (9 4}
Deferrad taxation on pension hability - - - - 23 23
Fair valiue on denvative instrurnents - - - (©3) {0 9) (12)
As at 31 December 2008 182 736 146 (14) 541 1601

Capltal

Share Share redemption Other Retained

capital premium reserve rEserve samings Total
Company £m Em £m Em £m
As at 1 January 2008 o1 56 146 04 387 684
New shares ssusd - 06 - - - 06
Loss for the year - - - - 25 {2 5)
Dwidends - - - - 73 {7 3)
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schemes (note 28) - - - - 73 73)
Deferred taxation on pension hability - - - - 20 20
Share based payments - - - (0 4) - 0 4)
Fair value on derwvative instruments - - - (11) - 1)
As at 31 December 2008 91 62 146 {11) 2386 524
New shares issued 101 674 - - - 7rs
Profit for the year - - - - {11 4) {11 4}
Actuanal gains on defined benefit
penston schemes (note 28} - - - - 37 37
Deferred taxaton on pension hability - - - - 06 06
Far value on denvatve mstruments - - - - (2 9) {0 9)
As at 31 December 2009 192 736 148 {1.1) 82 1145
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Cash Flow Statements

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note Em £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Joss) for the year 8.0 (16 O) {11.4} 25)
Adustments for
Tax 35 11 {5 5) a7
Ceprectation 3 83 90 0.3 03
Impaiment of fixed assats on dealarship closures - 25 - -
Cividend received - - {8.1) @5
Less on disposal of plant and equipment 3 - 02 - -
Loss on closed businesses 3 {1.8) - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3 1.7 14 0.8 04
Impairment of goodwill 8 - 31 - -
Interest income {0.3) (16) {55) (95)
Interest payable 7.2 263 137 201
Debt issue costs 0.8 04 0.9 04
Share based payment credit - c4 - (04)
Changes in working capital
Dacrease in inventores 58.2 171 - -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (18.3) 242 34.2 {12 4)
(Dacrease)increase in payables {520) (42 8) {14 9) 51
Difference between pension charge and
cash contnbutions {3.0) 22) {3.0) (24)
Movemant ln provisions {0.2) 14 - -
Cash generated from/{used i) operations 20.1 237 35 6 1)
Interest pard {150} (20 3) (10.8) (14 7)
Interest raceived 0.2 12 48 85
Tax refunded/{paid) 1.0 (30) 10 04
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 63 16 {1.6) (109)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidianes {net of overdraft acquired) - (44) - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment r.2) B8 {0.3) 03
Purchase of intangible assets {0.2) (38 {0.2} 38
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 25 05 - -
Proceeds from sale of business 0.3 - - -
Diwdends receved - - 6.1 35
Net cash (used)/ganerated by investing activities (4 6) {16 3} 56 086
Cash flows from financmg activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 77.8 - 776 -
Repayment of loans (65.9) {100) {65.9) (100)
Net proceeds from issue of new bank loans - 189 - 358
Debt issue costs {35) - {35 -
Prncipal payments under hire purchase agreements {01) o1 - -
Dividends paid to Group shargholders - (6 8) - (6 8)
Net cash from financing activities 8.1 2.0 8.2 190
Increase/{decrease} in cash end cash equivalents 8.8 (127} 122 75
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 21 148 85 10
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 119 21 20.7 B85
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Adoption of IFRS 8 'Operating segments’

The Group has adopted {FRS B 'Operating segmants' with effect from 1 January 2009 IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be 1dentified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the Chief Executive to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance At 31 Decembar 2009
the Group is organised into two main business segments, motor distribution and parts distnibution

Primary reporting format - business segments

Year ended Motor Parts
31 Dacember Division Distribution Unallocated Qroup
Note £m £m £m Em

Continuing operations

New Cars 7836
Used Cars 5427
Aftersales 2684
Revenue 1,594 7 154 3 - 1,749 0

Segmental result before amortisation of

intangible assets and exceptional temsa 337 114 - 451
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 11 ¢ 6) - (17)
Exceptional Items 3 (14 2) - - (14 2)
Interest expense 7 (17 1)
Interest income 03 03
Debt Issue costs {0 9) {0 9)
Prefit before taxation 184 108 7" 115
Taxation {3 5)
Profit for the financial year from

continuing operations attributable
to shareholders 80
Segmental assets 5321 102 6 - 634 7
Total assets 5321 102 6 - 634 7
Segmental fabilities 3345 528 - 3873
Unallocated labilities

- Corporate borrowings - - 873 873
Total liabilties 334 5 528 873 474 6
Other segmental items

Capitat expenditure {including acqguisitions) 10 42 a0 - 72
Depraciation 10 66 17 - 83
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 11 06 - 17
Impairment of trade receivables 13 07 06 - 13
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1. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (continuedy}

Year snded Motor Parts
31 Decamber 2008 Pivision Distribution Unallocated Group
Note fm £m £m £m

Continuing operations

New Cars 7874

Used Cars 556 8

Aftersales 3018

Revenue 1,646 0 1299 - 1,775 9
Segmaental result before amortisation of

intangible assets and exceptional items 256 83 - 339
Amortisation of intangible assets 2] (08) (0 6) - {14}
Impatrment of goodwillt 8 <R} - - 31
Exceptional ltems 3 (20 0) - - {20 0}
Interest expense 212 {21 2}
Interest income 13 13
Farr value on derivative Instruments 40 40}
Debt 1ssue costs 04 {0 8)
Loss before taxation 17 77 (24 3} 149
Taxation (1 1)
Loss for the financiat year from

continuing operations attributable
to shareholders (16 0
Segmental assets 5589 104 4 - 664 3
Unellocated assets

- Property, plant and equipment - - 05 05
Total asseta 559 9 104 4 05 664 8
Segmental liabilities 4101 401 - 4502
Unallocated Labilities

- Corporate borrowings - - 1317 1317
Total liabilites 4101 40 1 1317 5816
Other segmental items

Capntat expenditure (including acquisitions} 10 54 3z - 86
Depreciation 10 89 01 - g0
Amortisation of intangible assats 9 08 08 - 14
Imparment of trade receivables 13 08 0§ - 13

Segment assets include property, plant and equipment, inventeorles, debtors and operating cash Segment llablliies comprise
operating liabilities and exclude certain corporate borrowings Capital expenditure comprises addihions to property, plant and
equipment, including additions resutting from acquisitions through business combinations

Company
The Company's business Is to invest in its subsidiaries and, therafors, it operates in a single segment
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2. FINANCE COSTS - NET

Group Company
2009 2008 209 2008
fm £m £m £m
Interast expense
On emounts wholly repayable within § years
interest payables on bank borrowings (11.0) {122} {10.6) {11 8)
Interest on consignment vehicle labilities 36) @n - -
Interest due to Group companias - - 1.7 {01)
Other interast 0.2 {02) 0.1) {01)
Net interest on pension schemes {note 28} 2. {01) (13 -
Interest and similar charges payable {17.1} {21 2) {13.7) (12 0)
Interest mcome
Bank interest 0.3 13 0.2 04
Interest receved from Group companies - - 54 53
Net interest on pension schemes (note 28) - - - 01
Total interest recevable 0.3 13 56 58
Finance costs - net (16.8) {19 9) (8.1) 62
3. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION
Group Compzny
2009 2008 2009 2008
&m Em tm £€m
The following items have been Included in
arriving at operating profit from operations
Staff costs (note 7) 14856 1570 63 57
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- Owned assets 1.8 80 0.3 03
- Under finance leasss 0.4 10 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.7 14 0.8 04
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment - 02 -
Other operating lease rentals payable
- Property 4.3 43 - -
- Fiant & equipment 1.2 12 - -
Net gan/(loss) on
Financial labilities measured at amortised cost 178 314 0.8 162
(includes amounts shown as finange cost)
Exceptional ttems
Rafinance costs (6 6) - {6 6) -
Loss on terminated businesses (6.2) {133) (35) -
Integration costs . 33) - 11
Aborted acquisition costs - (16) - (16)
Cther {0.5) ©n (©.5) on
VAT - ©3 - -
Reorganisation costs {0.8) - (0.8) -
(14.1) (192) {11.4) (3 4)
Interast on closed businesses {0.1) {0 8) - -
Total exceptional items {142) {20 Q) (11.4) 34)

The terminated businesses represent the closure of certain franchised branches Thesse activities did not constitute a separate
major fine of business and so have not been classifled as discontinued
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3. PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION {continued)

Services provided by the Group's auditors
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration 18 as follows

2009 2008
Group £m £m
Fess payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company's annual accounts - -
Fees payable to tha Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group
The audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 0.3 03
Total audit fees 03 03
Tax services 0.2 01
Other sarvices 1.4 01
Total non-audit fees 1.6 02
Fees for other non-audit services relate pnmarnly to the refinancing exercise and the equity rassing
4, TAXATION
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
tm fm £m fm
Current tax expense/{income)
Current year a0 n4 5.7) (16)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 03 03 1.1 -
33 {11} (4 6) (16}
Defarred tax expense/{incoms)
Deferred tax 0.2 31 (oe) [(eR]]
Exceptional tax charge due to withdrawal! of industrial buildings allowance - 72 - -
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (19} {0.3) -
02 22 {0.5) o1}
Total income tax expense/(income) in Income Statement as 11 {5 5) a7
Qroup Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m
Tax on items charged to egquity
Deferred tax on penston lability 23 11 (0.6) 21
The tax charge was affected by the following factors
Standard rate of corporation tax 28.0% 285% 28.0% 2B 5%
Inter group dividend - - 10.1% 23 9%
ltemns not ellowable for taxation 6.1% (11 1)% (0.9)% (128)%
Withdrawal of industrial bulldings allowance - (48 3)% - -
Reclassifying assets held for sale {6 4% 106% - -
Adjustments to prior years' taxation 3.0% 12 9% {4 8)% -
30.7% 7 4)% 32 4% 39 6%

The future tax charge will be affected by tha levels of expenditure not deductible for taxation and any profits on sale of properties.
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8. DIVIDENDS
2009 2008
Qroup and Company Em £m
Final dnndend nil pence (2008 2 42p) - 44
Intenm dividend nil pence {2008 1.60p) - 29
- 73

The Directors do not propose a final dvidend in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2009

8. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Eamings per share for the prior year have been restated to reflect the effect of the issue of new ordinary sharas in the current
year at a prnice below market pnce

The calculation of eamings/{loss) per ordinary share is based on the profit on ordinary activities after taxation amounting to
£8 0m (2008 loss £16 Om) and a weightad average number of crdinary shares in issue dunng the year of 286,417,558 (2008
208,324,184)

The diluted earnings/{loss) per shara 1s based on the weighted average number of shares, after taking account of the dilutive
impact of shares under option of 7,337,396 (2008 nil)

Adjusted eamings/loss} per share s stated before amortisation of intangible assets, mpairment of goodwll, debt 1ssue costs and
exceptional items and is calculated on profits of £21 Om (2008 £9 7m) for the year

2009 2008
2009 Earnings 2008  {LossyEamings
Eamings per share  {Loss)/Eammgs per ehare
Continuing operations Em p £m [}
Basic EPS
Eamings/(loss) attnbutable to ordinary sharehclders 8.0 2.79 {16 0) (7 68)
Effect of dilutive secunties - (0.07) - -
Diluted EPS 8.0 2.72 {16 0) (7 68)
Adusted EPS
Eamings/(loss) attnbutable to ordinary sharsholders 8.0 279 (16 0} (7 68}
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.7 0.59 14 087
Impaiment of goodwall - - 31 149
Debt issue costs 08 0.3 - -
Exceptional items (net) 142 4.96 200 960
Tax on exceptional termns (net) 38) (1.33) (60) {2 88)
Exceptiona! tax due to withdrawal of industnal buildings allowance - - 72 346
Adjusted EPS 21.0 7.32 a7 4 68
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7. INFORMATION REGARDING EMPLOYEES

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
#m £m £m £m
Employee costs dunng the year
Wages and salaries 1325 1407 4.9 50
Social security costs 123 133 0.5 056
Other pension costs 3.7 30 09 g2
148.5 1570 63 57
2009 2005 2009 2008
No No Mo No
Average number employed during the year
{including Directors)
Productive 1,291 1,499 - -
Selling and dlstribution 2,752 2,962 - -
Admirustration 1,444 1,612 103 110
5,487 6,073 103 110
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Key management compensation
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 2.7 21 2.4 17
Post-employment benehts 0.3 02 0.3 01
Long-term benefits - - -
3.0 23 2.7 18

The key management compensation given above inciudes Directors
During the year the aggrepate gains made on the exearcise of share options by Directors was Enll (2008 £nll} Further detalls of
Directors’ remuneration Is included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 33 to 36

8 GOODWILL

2000 2008
Group £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 48.1 432
On acquisition - 49
As at 31 December 48.1 48 1
Aggregate impairment
As at 1 January 33 02
Impaiment - 31
As at 31 December 33 33
Net book amount at 31 December 448 448

Goodwill can be aflocated across the business segments as £39 Sm epplicable to the motor division and £5 3m applicable to
the parts divislon

During the year, the acquired gocdwill was tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Foliowing the impainment test,
ne goodwill imparment charge was deemed necessary (2008 €3 1m)
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8. GOODWILL {contirued)

For the purposes of impairmeant testing of goodwill and intangible assets, the Directors recognise the Group's Cash Generating
Units (“CGU") to be connected groupings of dealerships and each subsidiary compnsing the Parts Dwvision The recoverable
amount of each CGU's goodwill and Intangible asssts s based on value in use using Board epproved budgetad projections over
the next five years for sach CGU to calculate sach CGU's terminal vatue, where individual budgets are produced for all businesses
within the Group The key assumptions for the value n use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
axpected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period and the impairment calculation is sensitive to these key
assumptions Goodwill is represented by £38 Sm applicable to the Motor Division and £5 3m applicable to the Parts Division
Management estmates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the tme value of money
and the risks speclfic to the CGUs The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts Changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the markat An annual growth rate of 2 0% (2008
3 196} (UK GDP) 13 assumed and a nisk adjusted discount rate applied The discount rate used of 8 79 (2008 7 75%) reflects
management’s estimate of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU Where cashflows in excess of § years are
included in the calculation of the recoverable amount of each CGLU’s goodwill, this is bassd on operating units which occupy
freehold premises or leasshold premises with unexpired terms in excess of five years

0. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer

Ucences relationships Brands Total
Group fm £m £m £m
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 48 1.5 62 225
Additions 02 - - 02
As at 31 December 2009 50 115 62 227
Aggregate amorbsation and mpairment
As at 1 January 2003 09 24 08 41
Other 02 - - 02
Charge for the year 09 06 02 17
As at 31 December 2009 16 30 10 56
Net book amount at 31 December 2008 34 BS 52 171
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2008 04 1156 62 181
Raclassified from tangible fixed assets (note 10) 1]] - - 06
Addutions X:] - - 38
As at 31 December 2008 48 115 62 225
Aggregate amortisation and impairment
As at 1 January 2008 01 18 06 25
Raclassified from tangible fixed assets {note 10) 02 - - 02
Charge for the year 06 06 02 14
As at 31 December 2008 09 24 08 41
Net book amount at 31 December 2008 39 91 54 184
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS {continued)

Within Brands, intangible assets of £4 7m (2008 £4 7m) are deemed by the Directers to have an indefintte Iife which is confimed
by the annual impairment test All amortisation charges in the year have been recognised within administrative expenses The

mpairment tasting for intangible assets s performed as descnbed in note 8

Licancas
C Pany £m
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 44
Additicns 02
As at 31 December 2009 46
Aggregate amortisation and impairment
As at 1 January 2009 06
Charge for the year 08
Othar adjustments 0.2
As at 31 December 2009 12
Net book emount at 31 December 2009 34
Acquired intangible assets
Cost
As at 1 January 2008 -
Reclassified from tangible fixed assets (note 10} 06
Additions 38
As at 31 December 2008 44
Aggragate amortisation and impairment
As at 1 January 2008 -
Reclassified from tangible fixed assets {note 10) 02
Charge for the year 04
As at 31 December 2008 [H] ]
Net bock amount at 31 December 2008 38
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fixtures,
Short fittings,
Freshold leasshold fessshold Plamt & tools &
property property property hinery quip Total
Group £m Em £m £m Em £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 1364 509 117 139 218 2347
Additions in year a5 13 03 17 34 7.2
Disposals - {14 {08} (1.5 1.5 53
Reclassified to assets held for sale (note 16) {59) {1.5) - - - {7 4)
As at 31 Dacember 2009 1310 493 111 141 237 2292
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2009 3.7 28 29 75 120 289
Charge for the year 09 o7 06 24 37 83
Disposals - N {0 9} 13 (V4) (43)
Reclassified to assets hekd {or sale (nota 16) (1.3 1) - - - {1.3)
As at 31 December 2009 A4 27 26 88 143 316
Net book value at
31 Decemnber 2009 1276 456 85 55 94 197 6
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {ccninued)

Fixtures,
Fixtures,
Long Short fittings,
Freehold leasshold leasehold Plant & tools &
property property property machinery squipment Totad
Group £m m £m m £m £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2008 1381 514 112 149 235 2391
On acquisition 13 - 02 02 - 17
Additions in year 28 06 04 21 3¢ B6
Disposals - - 1) 33 (41} {7 5
Reclassified to assets held for sale (note 16) {55 N - - - (66)
Reclassified to intangible assets (nota 9) - - - - (0 6) {0 6)
Aas at 31 Decernber 2008 138 4 50 @ "7 139 218 2347
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2008 26 17 14 77 1"z 251
Charge for the year 09 08 07 25 41 90
Disposals - - - (28 38 (6 6)
Impairment of assets held for sale 13 - - - - 13
Impairment on closed businesses - 04 0B 01 02 15
Reclassiied to assets held for sale {note 16} (1 1) Q1) - - - {1.2)
Raclassified to intangible assets (note 8} - - - {©2) {0 2)
As at 31 December 2008 a7 28 29 75 120 289
Net book value at
31 Decembar 2008 1327 481 88 G4 66 2058
Assets held under finance lsases, capitalised and included in plant & machinery and fixtures and fittings
2009 2008
Em £m
Cost 0.6 04
Aggregate depraciation (0.4) 03
0.2 01

In accordance with IFRS 1 'First time adoption of International Reporting Standards’, and |IAS 16 ‘Property, plant and
aquipment’ the Group has adopted the cost model, electing to use revaluations made under previous UK GAAP as deemed

cost for its freehold and leasehold properties

The Group's freshold and leasehold properties were revalued on 31 December 2003, by independent qualified valuers on the
basis of open market vatue in England and Scotland by Messrs Donaldsons, Chartered Surveyors, and in Northern Ireland by
Messrs Hamilton Osbome King, Chartered Surveyors The Diractors are satisfied that open market value approximates to fair

value
Fixtures, Mttings,
tools &
equipment
Company £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2009 13
Additions i year 0.2
As at 31 December 2009 15
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2009 08
Charge for the year 03
As at 31 Decernber 2009 11
Net book value at 31 December 2009 04
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fixturas, fittings,
tools &
squipment
[ o pany £m
Cost
As at 1 January 2008 17
Additrons in year 62
Reclassified to intangible assets {note 5) 08
As at 31 December 2008 13
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2008 07
Charge for the year Q3
Reclassified to intangible assets (note 9) {02)
As at 31 December 2008 08
Net book value at 31 December 2008 05
11. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
2009 2008
Company Em £m
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 2009 53,7 537
Details of the principal subsidiary undertakings are as follows
DSM Autos Limitad Bolling Investments Limited
Charles Hurst Limited Charlas Hurst Motors Limitad
Lookers Motor Group Limited Ferrans Piston Service Limited
Lookers Blrmungham Limited MB South Limited
FPS Distnbution Limited Apec Limited
Dutton Forshaw Motor Company Limited BTN Turbocharger Service Limited
Lookers Leasing Limited Platts Hams Limited

All subsidiaries are incorporated and registered in England and operate in England and Wales with the exception of Charles
Hurst Limited end Chardes Hurst Motors Limited which ara incorporated, registered and operate in Northern lreland and
Scotland All subsidiary companies are wholly owned with the exception of Lookers Birmingham Limited and Charles Hurst
Motors Limited in which §9% shareholdings are held

A tull hist of subsidiary undertakings will be annexed to the Company's next Annual Return

12. INVENTORIES

2009 2008

Group Em £m
Goods for resale 171 1813
Bulk deposits paid for vehicles on consignment 0.1 05
Consignment vehicles 702 1219
2474 3037
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Qroup Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
fm £m £m £m

Amounts falling due within one year

Trade debtors 830 656 0.1 01
Less provision for impairment of raceivables {1.3) (13) - -
81.7 643 0.1 01
Amounts ewed by Group undertakings - - 185.0 2179
Other debtors 13.8 66 63 23
Prepayments 110 134 2.0 33
106.3 B4 3 193.4 22386

The average credit penod on sales of goods 15 18 days (2008 18 days) Trade recervables are provided for based on estimated
wrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods, determined by reference to past default experience

Included in the Group's trade recevable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £7.4m {2008 £6 8m) which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
Group believes that the amounts are still considered racoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances The
average age of these recevables is 43 days (2008 43 days)

Amcunts owed by Group undertakings in the Company balance sheet are incurred in the normal course of trading and the Directors
consider there to ba no significant credit nsk.

Group Company
2009 2008 2008 2008
Movement in the aflowance for doubtfut debts £m £m Em €m
Balance at begmining of the year 13 11 - -
Amounts wntten off during the year (0.3) {©4) - -
Increase in allowance recognised In Income Statement 0.3 06 - -
Balance at the end of the year 13 13 - -

In determining the recoverability of the trade recevables, the Group consdders any change in the credit quality of the trade
recevable from the date cradit was initially granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit risk 1s imited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated Accordingly, the Directors beliove that there is no further credit provision required in
excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

Included in the allowanca for doubtful debts are specific trade receivables with a balance of £270,305 (2008 £300,000) for the
Group and £n11 (2008 Enil) for the Company which have been placed under liquidation The impawrment represents the difference
betwesn the carrying amount of the specific trade receivable and present value of the expected hiquidation dividend

2009 2008
Value of Asceivabies Value of Receivables
Group fm % £m %
Not impalred:
- Neither past due nor impeired 8a.7 93.1 841 204
- Past due up to 3 months but not impaired 63 66 65 92
- Past due 3 to 6 months 02 02 03 04
- Past due 6 to 12 months 0.1 0.1 - -
953 100.0 709 1000
2009 2003
Vahse of Recelvables Value of Recalvables
Company fm % £m %
Not impaired:
- Netther past due nor mpared 1914 100.0 2203 1000
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14. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Qroup Company
2009 2008 2000 2008
Em Bm £m £m
Investments carried et cost:
Non-current
Invastments in subsidianes - - 53.7 537
Loans carried at amortised cost:
Current
Loans to subsidianes - - 1850 2179
Dhsclosed in the financtal statements as
Current other financial assets - - 185.0 2179
Nen-currant other financial assets - - 53.7 537
15, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 123 21 20.7 82

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three

months or less  The camrying amount of these assets approximates to therr fair value

16. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Em fm £m £m
Reclassified from property, plant & equipment (note 10} 0.2 54 - -

Assets held for sale comprises several frechold and long leasehold properties which are currently being marketed for resale
These properlies ara stated at the lower of net resaleable value or net book value and in the Directors’ opinion are likely to be

realised during 2010

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Qroup Company
2009 2008 2000 2008
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 126.5 1032 38 33
Repurchase commitments 65.7 834 -
Consignment vehicle creditors 702 1219 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 245 34
Other tax and social security payable 9.2 1186 - 01
Other creditors 10.7 193 88 16¢
Accruals and deferred income 328 323 8.0 68
315.1 377 43.1 585
Repurchase commitments due after more than 1 year 46 54 - -
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18. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Qroup Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Current tax habilities 88 45 8.0 48
19. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2000 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Current
Secured bank loans 10.4 - 10.0 -
Unsecured bank loans - 100 - 100
104 100 10.0 100
Non-current
Secured bank loans 80.9 - 80.9 -
Unsecured bank loans - 1416 - 1485
Total borrowings 91.3 1516 90.9 158 5
- Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
fm Em fm £€m
Bank loans and overdraft repayable
Less than one year 10.4 100 100 100
More than one year and not more than two years 10.0 100 10.0 100
More than two years and not mora than five years 70.9 1316 70.9 1385
"na 1516 00.9 1685

The pnncipa! features of the Group's borrowings are as follows

At 31 December 2009 the Group had 2 principat bank loans

{} A loan of £90 9m which will continue until 30 April 2012 The loan cames an nterest rate of between 3 0% and
4 0% above LIBOR

(i) A revolving loan facity of £53m The facility can be drawn in whole or part at any ttme and will continue until 30 April
2012 The drawn down part of the loan carmes an interest rate of between 3 0% and 4 0% above LIBOR

The weighted average interest rate pad dunng the year on the bank loans was 2 7% (2008 5 91%)
At 31 December 2009, the Group had avallable £52 8m (2008 £84 Om) of undrawn committed borrowing facllities in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met

The Group's current facilities were negotiated on 29 May 2009 and updated on 26 June 2009 as a result of the equity raising
which repaid £65m of term loans with £12 6m being applled against the ravolving loan tacility

Ot this amount £81 3m (2008 £117 5m) is repayable in instalments up until 2012 (2008 2010}

The Company is jointly and severally Bable under cross guarantees within the Group for bank loans and overdrafts which amounted

to £0 4m (2008 £2 Sm) -
61
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Detads of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, mchuding the cntena for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, In respect of each class of financial asset, financial hability and
equity instrument are disclosed in the accounting policy note

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008
Categories of financisi instruments £m Em £m £m
Financial agsets
Cash 123 21 20.7 82
Loans and receivables 81.7 643 1852 2181
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 358 4 4655 1192 192 2

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Group's Corporate Treasury function manages the financial risks retating to the operations of the Group through internal risk
reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of nsks These nsks include market nsk (including currency nisk, fair
value interest rate risk and pnce risk), credit risk, hiquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group sseks to mirumise the effacts of these risks, by using derrvative fimancal instruments to hedge these risk exposures
The use of financiat denvatives is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written
principlas on foreign exchange nsk, interest rate risk, cradit risk, the use of financlal derivatives and non-denivative financial
instruments, and the investment of excess lquidity Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the ntemnal
auditors on a continuous basis The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including dervative financial
instruments, for speculative purposss

The Corporate Treasury function reports quarterly to the Group's banking committee, an independent body that monitors risks
and pohcies implermented to mitigate nisk exposures

Market Risk
The Group's activities expose it primanly to the financial nsks of changes in foretgn currency exchange rates and nterest rates
The Group enters into a vanety of derivative financial Instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foraign currency
risk, including

+ forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the purchase of parts,
¢ forward Interest rates, and
+ nterest rate nsk management.

During the course of the year there has been no change to the market risk or manner in which the Group manages its
exposure

Foreign Currency Risk Manegement
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations
anse Exchange rate exposures are managed wrthin approved policy paramaeters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary habilities at the reporting date
is as follows

Liahilitiss Assels
2000 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
usD - - 0.8 06
Euro - 10 02 10

The Company had no foreign currency denominated monetary assets or monetary liabilities at the reporting date (2008 same}
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20, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contnued)

The majority of the Group's business is carried out in sterling However for the limited number of transactions in foreign currency
the Group s mainly exposed to US Dollars and Euros The following table details the Group's sensrvity to a 10% change in
pounds steding aganst the respactive foreign curencies. The 10% 13 the rate used when reporting foreign cumrency nisk intermnally
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates The
sengitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency nsk at the reporting date has been determined based on the
changs taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period A positive number
indicatas an increase in profit or loss and other equity where pounds sterling strengthens against the respective currency

USD lmpact Eurw lmpact
Group Qroup
2000 2008 2009 2008
fm £m Em £m
Profit or loss - 01 - -

Other aquity - - - -

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Group and Company are exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates The risk Is managed by the Group by mamntaining an appropniate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the
use of interest rate swap contracts Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interast rate views and defined risk
appetite, snsuring optimal hedging strategies are applied, by either positioning the balance sheet or protecting interest expanse
through diffarent interest rate cycles

The Group and Company's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial kabliliies are detailed in the liquidity nsk
management section of this note

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposura to interest rates at the reporting date and stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period A 50 basts pont
changse Is used when raporting interest nsk internally to key management personne! and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in interest rates

+ 60 Basis Points - 60 Basls Points
Group Company Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m &m Em £m
Profit or loss (0.6) 07} - (0 8) 08 o7 - 08
Other aquity (0.6} - - - 0.8 - - -

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group end Company agree to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate
interest amounts calculated on agreed notiona! principal amounts Such contracts enable the Group and Company to mitigate
the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the 1ssued
variable rate debt held The far value of interast rate swaps at the year end is determuned by discounting the future cash flows
using the year end curves and the credit risk inherant in the contract, and is disclosed on the next page The average interest
rate 13 based on the outstanding balances at the start of the financial year

Credit Risk Management

Cradn risk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditwarthy counterparties and obtaning sufficient collateral where
apprepriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financia! loss from defaults The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of
its counterparties is controlled by counterparty knuts that are reviewed and approved by the Risk Management Committee
annually
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cortinued)

Trade receivables are spread across a large number of counterpartios across a large geographical area.

The Group does not have any significant credit nsk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having
smitar characteristics The credit risk on liqud funds and denvative financial instruments is limuted because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international cred-rating agencies

The carrying amount of financiat assets recorded in the financia! stataments, net of any allowances for losses, represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtaned

Liquicity Risk Management

Uttmate responsibility for liguidity nsk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an eppropriate liquidity nsk
management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and long-term funding end liquidity management
roqurements The Group manages iquidity nsk by mamntaming adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilties
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of flnancial assets and labilites
Included n note 30 18 a isting of additional undrawn facities that the Group/Company has et rts disposal to further reduce higuidity
risk.

The following table details the Group's and the Comparny's remaining contractual maturity for its non-denvative financtal habilities
The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial Habllities including
interest that will accrue to those habdities except where the Group/Company 15 entitled and intends to repay the hability before its
maturity

Leas than 1-3 3 Montha to 16
1 Month Months 1 Year Years Total
Qroup £m m £m &m m
2009
Vanable interest
rate instruments 04 656 100 B80S 1569
Fixed interest rate
instruments - 2369 - - 2369
04 3025 100 809 3938
2008
Variable interest
rate instruments - 834 100 1416 2350
Fixed mierest rate
instruments - 2251 - - 2251
- 3085 100 14186 460 1

Included within vanable mterest rate instruments in the 1 to 3 month column s an amount of £65 7m (2008 £83 4m) relating to
repurchase commitments where the liabllity is only contractually due at the point wherse the related vehicle is sold to the end
customer In this way the Group matches the cash outflow In respact of the liability with the cash inflow from the sale

Included within fixed interest rate instruments in the 1 to 3 month column s an amount of £70 2m (2008 £121 9m) relating
to consignment stock where the liability is contractually due for payment when the related vehicle is adopted by the Group
Adoption usually occurs {or the purpose of selling the vehicle to the end customer at which point the cash outflow in respect of
the hability matches the cash Inflow from the sale
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Lesa than 1-3 3 Months 1-5
1 Month Months to 1 Yenr Years Total
Compeany €m tm £m £m tm
2008
Variabte interest
rate Instruments - - 100 809 809
Fixed interest rate
Instrumants - 282 - - 282
- 28 2 100 809 1191
2008
Varlable interast
rata instruments - - 100 1496 1596
Fixed interest rate
instrumaents - 337 - - 337
- 337 100 1496 1933

The cbjactives, policies and strategles for holding or issuing financial instruments adopted by the Board are given in tha
Directors’ Report Instruments held at the year end are sat out n note 30

21, PROVISIONS

Ditapidations Closure costa Total
Greup Em £m £m
As at 1 January 2008 1 12 23
Charged to Income Statement 01 - 01
Utiised in year (03) {0 5) {0 8)
As st 31 December 2003 09 07 18

Provisions have been allocated between current and non-current as follows

2009 2008

Em £m

Current 0.9 16
Non-current 0.7 07
1.8 23

Dilapidations

The Group operatas from a number of leasshold premises under full repainng leases The provislon recognises that repairs are
required to put the bulldings back into the state of repar required under the leases Currently, these leases are expected to
expire between 2010 and 2018
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22 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax s calculated in fufl on temporary differences under the hiability method using a tax rate of 28% (2008 28%) The

movemartt on the deferred tax account 18 as shown below

Qroup Comgpany
2009 2008 2000 2008
£m £m £m £m
As gt 1 January 2009 1323 128 {5.9) (38)
Chargedf{credited} to Income Statement (note 4) 0.2 22 {0.8) {0 1)
Credited to Statement of Recognised Income and Expense {2.3) {(17) 0.6} {2 Q)
As &t 31 Decemnber 2009 1.2 133 (7.4) {5 9)

The deferred tax credited to equity during the current and prior year related to the deferred tax movement on the psnsion

liability

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary diffarences giving rise to deferrad

tax essets because it is probable that these assets will be recovered

The movements on deferred tax assets and habilties (prior to the offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction as

permitted by IAS 12) dunng the penod are shown below Deferred tax assets and liabilities are conly offset where there 1s a
legally enforceable nght of offset and there 13 an intention to settle the balance net

Group
Deferred tax habilitres
Accelersted tax
depreciation Capital galns Total
£m £m fm
As at 1 January 2009 206 32 238
Charged to Income Statement 02 - 02
As at 31 December 2009 208 32 240
Deferred tax assats
iosses Short
carried Employse term timing
forward benasfits differsnces Total
Em £m £m £m
As at 1 January 2009 (11) 77N an (10 5)
Charged/(credited} to Income Statement 11 02 {09) -
Credited to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income - {23) - {23)
As at 31 December 2009 - (10 2) {2 8) (12 8)
Net deferred tax hability
As at 31 December 2009 112
As at 31 December 2008 133
Company
Deforred tax assets
Employse Accsieruted tax
benefits Provisions depreciation Totay
£m £m £m &m
As at 1 January 2009 (4 5) 1) {03 (59)
{Crecitedy/charged to Income Statement 1) to 02 {09}
Credited to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income {0 6) - - {0 6}
As at 31 Dacember 2009 52 21) {©1) {74)
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23. SHARE CAPITAL

2009 2008
Group and Company Shares £m Shares £m
Authorised
Ordinary sharea of S5p each 480,000,000 240 270,000,000 135
Allotted, called up and fully pad
ordinary sharas of S5p each
As at 1 January 181,670,573 9.1 181,089,807 91
Allotted on placing and placing and open offer 201,856,192 104 - -
Allotted under share option schemes 843 - 170 -
Allotted on scrip {ssue - - 580,598 -
As at 31 December 383,527,608 192 181,670,573 g1

Potential Issues of Ordinary Shares
Options on 1,187,590 ordinary shares lapsed or were forferted dunng 2009 The number of shares subject to options, the periods
in which they were granted and the psnods mn which they may be exercised are grven below

Exerciss 2009 2008

prics Exercise Numbaer Number

Yeor of grant psnce period {5p Shares) (5p Shares)

2007 MSP 50 2009-2016 - 785,590

2008 PSP - 2011-2018 1,619,000 2,021,000
Employee ShareSave Scheme

The employes ShareSave schemne was available to al! eliglble employees and was based on Save As You Earn (SAYE) savings
contracts with options exercisable within a perlod from the conclusion of a three year term as appropnate from the date of
grant Under the terms and conditions of this scheme, for avery month (up to no morse than six months) an employee fails to
contribute the agresd monthly amount determined under the nules of the scheme, the last date exercisable will be delayed

by one month The latest grant under the ShareSave scheme was made in the year ended 2009 No further grants have been

made under this scheme

The total expense included within operating profit from continuing operations in respect of cash-settled payments was £l

{2008 £nil}

24. SHARE PREMIUM

Qroup and Company £m
As at 1 January 2008 66
Ansing on issue of naw shares 06
As at 1 January 2009 6.2
Arising on issue of new shares 674
As at 31 December 2009 738
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25. CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Group and Company Em
As at 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009 146
28. OTHER RESERVE

Group Company

£m £m

As at 1 January 2009 {11) 1)
Fair valus on interest rata hedge {0 3) -
As at 31 December 2009 {1 4} {11)
27. RETAINED EARNINGS

Qroup Company

£rn £m

As at 1 January 2008 818 387
Net loss for the year (16 0) (25)
Dmdends paid 73 73
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 1) {73
Deferred taxation on pension hability 17 20
As at 31 December 2008 541 236
Net proft for the year 80 {11 4}
Actuanal losses on defined benefit penston schemes {9 4) B3N
Deferrad taxation on pension hability 23 06
Fair value on denvative instruments {0 9) (0 9)
As at 31 Dacember 2009 54 1 82

Group retained earnings include €17 tm (2008 £17 1m}) of non-distnbutable reserves relating to properties which had been

revalued under UK GAAP, but treated as deemed cost under IFRS
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28, PENSIONS

Pension Scheme - The Lookers Pension Plan

The pension plan “The Lookers Pension Flan”, which 1s a defined benefit scheme, provides benefits based on final pensionable
salary The Lookers Pension Plan, which 1s a funded scheme, i1s adminustered by Willam M Mercer Limited The scheme has been
registered with the Registrar of Pensicns The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, being held n
separate funds by the Trustees of the Lookers Pension Plan

The Group has applied IAS 18 (Revised 2004) to this scheme and the foliowing disclosures refate to this standard The Group
recognises any actuarial gains and losses in each period in the Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The pension charge for the schema for 2009 was £2 3m (2008 £1 Om}
A valuation update was made as 8t 31 December 2009 by & qualifiad independent actuary to take account of the IAS 19
requrements Schems habiliies have been calculated using a congistent projected unit valuation methed and compared to the

scheme's assets at their 31 Decemnber market value

Based on actuarial advice end using the assumptions below in calculating the scherme's hatilities, the total vatue of these liabiities
under LAS 19 are £79 6m at 31 December 2009

The farr value of assets of the scheme and the expected rates of return on each class of assets are

Expected Market Expectad Market

rate of return velue rate of retum value

2009 2009 2008 2008

» £m % £m

Equitias 1.5 429 87 74
Bonds 5.2 182 47 178
Cash 0.5 0.3 20 03
Total falr value of assets 61.4 555

The overall net deficit between the assets of the Group's defined benefit schemne and the actuanal habilities of the scheme which
has beean recognised on the balance sheet are as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m £m £m €m £m

Farr value of scheme essets 81.4 555 668 633 573
Actuarial value of schama liabilities {79.6) {71 6) {78 Q) (74 B) {76 5)
Deficit in the scheme {18.2) (16 1) {112) {11 5) {192)
Related daferred tax asset {note 22) 5.1 4.5 31 34 57
Net pansion liability (13.1) {11 6} (8 1) {8 1) (135}
Expenence adjustments i plan llabilibes - {4 6) - - {18)
Experience adjustments in plan assets 8.1 {17 1) (11} 30 52

The amounts recognised in the Income Statements are as follows:

2000 2005
Em £m

Current service cost 0.7 11
Net gains on curtaifments and settlements 03 -
Total included in_admirustrative expenses 10 1.1
Interest on obhgation 45 45
Expected return on scheme assets {3.2) (4 6)
Total included In finance costs {note 2) 13 (01)
Total defined benefit axpenses 23 10
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28. PENSIONS {continued}

Changes In ths present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2009 2008
£m fm_
Opening defined benefit obiigation 716 780
Service cost 0.7 11
Contributions by employees 0.3 03
Interast cost 46 45
Actuarlal losses/{gains) a8 (98
Gains on curtaliments and settlements 0.3 -
Benefits paid {8.7) {2 5}
Closing defined benefit obligation 70.6 716
Changes in the fair value of gcheme assets are as follows:
Opening falr value of scheme assets 55.5 668
Expected return 3.2 46
Actuarial gains/{losses) 6.1 (17 1)
Contributions by employer 4.0 34
Contnbutions by employees 0.3 03
Bensfits pald (6.7} 25
Closing falr value of schems assets 61.4 555

The actual return cn scheme assots was £8 4m (2008 £12 5m loss) None of the scheme’s assets were invested in Lookers plc
or property otcupied by Lookers pic In addition to the 14 4% of penslonable payroll to fund accrulng pensions, the Company
contnbuted an additional £1 6m in 2009 The Group expects to maintain a similar laval of pension contributions in 2010

2009 2008
fm £m

Total amount of actuarial losses recognisad In the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the year {3.7) 73
Cumnulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income at the yeear end (16.4) {12 7}
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total
scheme assets are as follows:
Equities 69.9% 67 4%
Bonds 29.6% 320%
Cash 0.5% 0 6%
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28. PENSIONS {continued)

Principal actuarial sssumptions at the batance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

2009 2003
Discount rate 8.9% 6 6%
Expected return on assets 8.8% 60%
Future galary increzses 3.0% 30%
Future pension Increasas 2.3% 24%
Life expectancy et age 65 for

current pensioners - males 863 863
current pensioners - females 892 B9 2
future pensioners - males 87.2 87.2
future pensioners - females 91.6 800

Where investments are held in bonds and cash, the expected long-term rate of return Is taken to be the yields generally pravailing on
such assets at the balance sheet date A higher rate of return 13 expected on equity investments, which is based more on realistic
future expectations than on the returns that have been available historically The overall expected long-term rate of return on assets
Is then the average of these rates taking into account the underlying asset portfolio of the pension plan.

Amounts for the current and previous period are as fcllows:

£m £m
Defined benefit obligation 79.6 76
Scheme assets (61.4) (55 5)
Deficit 18.2 161
Experience losses on plan llabilities - (4 6)
Expenence gans/{losses) on plan assets 5.1 {17 1)

The Group and Company provide pansion arrangaements for certain Directors under defined contnbution schemas The Group has
recently introduced a defined contrbution Stakeholder Pension Scheme for employess The Income Statemant account charge
for the year in respect of defined contribution schemes was £1 2m (2008 £1 0m)

Pension Schemse - The Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan

The Dutten Forshaw Group's pension plan “The Dutton Forshaw Group Penslon Plan”, which 5 a defined benefit scheme provides
benefits based on final pensionable salary The Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan, which 1s a funded scheme, is administered by
Equinii Financial Services Limited The scheme has been registared with the Registrar of Pensions The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, being held in separate funds by the Trustees of the Dutton Forshaw Group Pension Plan
The Group has applied IAS 19 (Revised 2004) to this scheme and the following disclosures relate to this standard The Group
recognisaes any actuanal gains and losses in each peried in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A valuation update was made as at 31 December 2009 by a qualified indepeandent actuary to take account of the LAS 19 requirements
Scheme liabilties have been calculated using a consistent projectad unit valuation method and compared to the scheme's assets
at their 31 December market value

Based on actuanal advice and using the assumptions below in calculating the scheme’s liabiiies, the tota! value of these habilities
under IAS 15 is £84 5m at 31 December 2009 {2008 £73 1m)

The falr value of assets of the scheme and the expacted rates of retum on each class of assets are

Expected Market Expected Market

rats of retum value rate of retum value

2009 2009 2003 2008

% Em % Trm

Equities 1.5% 39.4 67 387
Corporate Bonds 5.85% 100 66 99
Gits 45% 184 37 149
Cash 0.5% 0.4 20 -
Total faiwr value of assets 687.1 615
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28. PENSIONS (continued)

The overall net defickt between the assets of the Group's defined benefit scheme and the actuarial liabllities of the scheme, which

has been recognised on the balance sheet s as follows

2009 2008 2007
fm £m £m
Farr value of scheme assets 672 615 737
Actuanal value of scheme fiabilities {84 5) {731) (868 3)
Deflctt in the schame {17.3) (11 8) (12 6)
Related deferred tax asset (note 22} 4.9 32 35
Net pension lability (12.4) {8 4) 21)
Expenence adjustments in ptan babilities - - -
Expenience adjustments in plan asse's 55 {15 5} (10}
The amounts recognised in the Income Statements are as follows:
2009 2008
fm £m
Current service cost 0.3 08
Net gains on curtaiments and settlaments 0.4 -
Total included in administrative expenses 0.7 08
Interast on obligation 48 50
Expected return on scheme assets {3 6} {48)
Total included in finance costs {note 2) 1.0 02
Total defined benefit expenses 1.7 10
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
2009 2008
£m £m
Opening deflned benefit obligation 73.1 863
Service cost 03 0B
Contributions by employees 0.3 02
Liabllities extinguished on settlements 2.3 -
Lossas on curtailment and settlaments 0.4 -
interest cost 46 50
Actuanial losses/{gains) 112 (167
Benefits pald {3.2 {2.5)
Closing defined benafit obligation 845 731
Changes in the talr value of scheme assets are as follows.
Opening fair vatue of scheme assets 615 737
Expected return 36 48
Actuanal gains/{losses) 55 {15 5)
Contnbutions by employer 1.6 1]
Assets distributed on settlements 2.2) -
Contnbutions by employees 03 02
Benefits paid 3.2 25
Closing fair value of schems assets 87.1 615

The actual retum on scheme assets was £9 1m {2008 £10 7m loss) None of the scheme's assets were Invested in Lookers plc

or proparty occupled by Lookers pic
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28, PENSIONS (continued)

2009 2008
m £m

Total amount of actuarial losses recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the year 5.7 12
Gumulative amount of actuanal losses recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income at the year end (6.9) (*3)
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total
scheme assets are as follows:
Equities 58,7% 597%
Corporate Bonds 162% 16 1%
Gilts 24.6% 24 2%
Cash 0.6% -

Principal ectuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date {expressed as weighted averages) are as follows,
2009

2008
Discount rate 5.90% 66%
Expected return on assets 6 5% 60%
Future salary increases 3.0% 30%
Future pension increases 3.0% 29%
Lifa expectancy at age 65 for

cumrent pansioners - malas 86.3 862
current pensioners - fernales 89.2 832
future pensioners - males ar.2 873
future pensioners - females 90.0 802

Where investments are held in bonds and cash, the expected long-term rate of return is taken to be the yields generally prevailing on
such assets at the balance sheet date. A higher rate of retumn is expected on equity mvestments, which s based more on realistic future
axpectations than on the retumns that have been available historically The overall expected long-term rata of return on assets is then the
average of thesa rates talung into account the underiying asset portfoho of the pens:on plan

Amounts for the current period are as foflows: £m £m
Defined benefit obligation 845 731
Scheme assets (67.1} {815)
Deficit 174 1186
Expenence losses on plan habilities - -
Experience losses on plan assets 55 (155)

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Comparny bears certain administrative costs and interest costs centrally which are recharged to the Group. In addition, the
Company charges management charges and receves dividends from its subsidiarles. The balances with Group undertakings are
summansed m the teble below

Amounts owed by Group Amounts owed to Group

undertskings (Note 13) undertakings (Nots 17}
2009 2008 2009 2008
m fm Em Em
Bolling Investrnents Limited 524 507 - -
DSM Autos Limited 655 €85 0.1 01
Charles Hurst Limited 5.8 56 - -
Charles Hurst Motors Limited - 01 - -
Platts Harris Limited 10 14 - -
FPS Distribution Limited 6.2 o8 - -
Ferraris Piston Service Limited 23 16 - -
Apac Braking Limited 1.0 09 - -
BTN Turbocharger Service Limited 03 02 - -
Lookers Leasing Limited - 04 - -
t.ookers Motor Group Limited 369 471 14.1 195
Lockers Blrmingham Limited 02 1.8 - -
MB South Limited - 78 19 -
Dutton Forshaw Motor Company Limited 128 214 74 08
Dormant Companies 08 06 1.0 10
1858.0 2179 24.5 314

Key management compensation 13 included in note 7
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30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The objactives, policies and strategies for holding or ssuing financial instruments adopted by the Board are given in the Directors’
Report, Detals regarding the Group’s danvative financial instruments at 31 December 2009 and 2008 are given in note 20 The
Group's other financial assets and habities are detaled below

Fair Values

The falr values of the Group's trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trada payables (which include kabilties in respect of
nterest-beanng consignment stock), short-term provisions and loans and cverdrafts with a matunty of lesa than one year are assumed
to approximate to their book value The fair value of the Group’s non-cumrent provision is not materially different from s far value
The Group's other non-current financsal §abilitles are all subject to floating interest rates and so their far value also approximates to

book value
Maturity of Financial Liabilities
The maturity profile of the carying amount of the Group's non~current financial liabilties at 31 Decernber 2009 and 2008 are given
i note 20
Borrowing Facllities
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing factities avatable at 31 December 2009 and 2008 which expire

2009 2008

£m Em

Within two to five years 62.7 840

The above facilitres represent loans and overdrafts, for which the facilities have been confirmed

Interest Rate Profile
Financial assets compnse cash of £12 3m (2008 £2 1m})
An analysis of the Group's loans and overdrafts between fixed and floating rates is given below

2009 2008

Financial Habilities Financial liabilities

£m £m

Fixed Rate - -
Floating Rate 013 1516
Total 3 1516

Interest rates on the Group's floatng rata fiabiities are based on the London Interbank rate At 31 Decemnber 2009 ali of the Group's bank
loans and overdrafts are potentially exposed to re-pricing within 12 months of the balance sheet date (2008 12 months)

Foreign Currencies

The maonty of the Group’s activities are transacted n stering although some of its purchases are made in US Deflars and Euros The
Group manages the foreign curency risk associated with these foreign currency purchases through the use of forward contracts as a
commercial hedge The Group has not sought hadge accounting under LAS 39 in respect of these contracts

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

2009 2008
Property Plant & equipment Property Plant & equipment

Group £m £m £m Em
Commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases expiring
Within one year 7.8 1.1 66 08
Within two to five years 345 0.9 230 06
After five ysars 46.9 - 424 .

69.3 2.0 720 14

32. CONTINGENT GAIN
Additional amounts may be receivable from HM Revenue & Customs in respect of overpayments of VAT in previous years These
74 will not be recognised until they have been agreed
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EBANCHISES
Prestige Franchises

Alfa Romeo
Carchff

Aston Martin
Belfast

Bentley
Belfast

Chrysler, Jeep, Dodge
Belfast

Ferrari
Belfast

Honda
Bexlayheath
Derby
Lvarpool
Nottingham
Southport
Warnngton

Jaguar

Belfast

Glasgow

London - Park Royal
Motherwell

Land Rover
Battersea

Belfast

Bishop's Stortford
Chelmsford
Colchastar

Glasgow

London - Park Royal
Motherwall

Lexus
Belfast
Hatfield

Maserati
Belfast

Mercedes-Benz
Ashford

Brighton
Canterbury
Eastboumne
Gatwick
Maidstone
Redhill
Tonbridge

Saab
Chester
Lrverpool

Smart
Bnghton
Gatwick
Mardstons
Tonbndge

Trading Outlets and Interests
in Major Subsidiary Companies

Volvo
Colchester
Glasgow
Motherwall

Volume Franchises

Chevrolet
Lverpool
Warrington
Yardley

Citrodén
Belfast
Blackpocl
Liverpool
Preston

Fiat
Northwich
Stockport

Ford

Bralntree

Chelmsford

Clacton

Colchester

Macclesfield

Sheffield

South Woodham Ferrers
Sudbury

Witham

Hyundai
Dundonald
Motherwell

Kia
Baelfast
Colchester
Stockport

Mazda
Motherwall

Nissan
Altrincham
Belfast

Chester
Newtownabbey

Peaugect
Belfast
Cardiff
Motherwell
Newport

Renautt
Altrincham
Belfast
Chalmsford
Chester
Colchester
Macclesfield
Newtownabbey
Newtownards
Northwich
Stockport

Seat
Stockport

Toyota

Belfast
Chaelmstord
Newtownabbey
Rayle:gh
Romford

Vauxhall
Balfast
Birkenhead
Birmingham
Blackburn
Chestar
Dundonald
Ellasmere Port
Lisbum
Lverpool
Portadown
Selly Oak
Speke

St Helens
Wallasey
Warrington
Yardloy

Volkswagen
Battersea
Blackbum
Blackpoo!
Boston
Bumnley
Darlington
Lincaln
Morden
Northallerton
Praston
Teesside

Motorcycles
BMW
Newtownabbey

Yamaha
Belfast

Tyres

Betfast - Boucher Road
Bellast - Sydenham Road
Coleraine

Dundcnald

Omagh

Portadown

USED CAR

SUPERMARKETS
Bnstol

Burton-on-Trent
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PARTS DISTRIBUTION
FPS

Barking
Birmingham
Bristol
Cardiff
Chariton
Colchestar
Glasgow
Leeds
Leicester
Liverpool
Luton
Maidstone
Manchester
Newcastle
Nottingham
Praston
Reading
Sheffield
Southampton
Staples Comer

Apec
Bristol

BTN Turbocharger
Uxbridge

Darley Dale
Tuxford

Major Subsidiary
Companies

DSM Autos Limited

Bolling Investments Limited
Charles Hurst Limited

Charles Hurst Motors Limited
Lookers Motor Group Linited
Lockers Birmingham Limited

M8 South Limited

FPS Distnbution Limited
Apec Limited

BTN Turbocharger
Service Limited

Dutton Forshaw Motor
Company Lirmited
Lookers Leasing Limited
Platts Harris Limited

Ferraris Piston Service Limited

Website:
vorwlookers.co.uk




Five Year Record

Year encled

Year ended

Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Decembar 31 December 31 Decemnber 31 Detembaer
2005 2000 2007 2008 2009
£m £m £m £m fm
Turnover 12316 1,426 7 1,680 0 1,7759 1,749.0
Proflt before tax, amortisation,
exceptional terns and debt esue costs 180 264 245 140 283
Amortisation/impairment 09 o8 (08 45 .0
Net exceptlonal iterns on 41) (0 4} {20 0) {14.2)
Farr value on denvative mstruments - - - 40 -
Debt ssue Costs - o1 (0 3 (04 (0.9)
Profit/{loss) befcre taxation 164 214 230 (14 9} 1185
Taxation (4 8} {6 B) (6 6) (11) {35)
Profit/loss) attributable to shareholdars 116 146 16 4 {18 0) 8.0
Equity dividend per share® 305p 350p 402p 1 60p -
Basic eamings/{loss) per ordinary share 653p 813p 9 09p {7 68)p 2.79p
Adusted eamings per ordinary share 7 54p 10 63p 981p 4 66p T32p
As at Penod end
Shareholders’ interests
Share captal 88 a0 91 a1 192
Reserves
- non-distnbutable 352 364 s 368 1031
- distnbutable 461 589 64 6 370 318
Net assets 902 104 3 1115 829 160.1

“‘Dividends per share are based on interm dividend paid and final dividend dectared for the year
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Notice of Meeting

Incorporated in England under the Companies Act 1885 Registered No 111876

NOTIGE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the ONE HUNDREDTH Annual General Meeting of Lockers plc (the “Company”) will be heid
at Lookers ple, 776 Chester Road, Stretford, Manchester, M32 0QH on Thursday 27 May 2010 at 10 00am for the following
purposes

1

To approve and adopt the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 together with the reports therson of the
Directors and Audrtors {Resclution 1)

To receive and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year endad 31 December 2009 {Resolution 2)
Tore-elect J E Brown as a Director who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association (Resolution 3)

To ra~elect P M White a3 a Diractor who retires in accordance with the Articles of Association (Rasolution 4)
Mr White's expenence in business and his contribution to the Group's progress dunng his penod as Nen-Executive Chairman
form the basis of the Board's belief to recommend fus re-election as a Non-Executive Director

To re-appoint Deloitte LLP as Auditors (Resolution 5)
To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors (Resclution 6)

To authorise the Directors to generally and unconditionally, in accordance with Saction 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to
exercise all the powers of the Company to aflot relevant securittes (within the meaning of the said Section 551) up to an
aggregate nommnal amount of £6,400,150 (128,003,011 shares) duning the pericd commencing on the date of the passing of
this Resolution and expiring on the date of the next Annual General Meating of the Company but 0 that this authority shall
allow the Company to make, before the expiry of this authonty, offers or agreements which would or might require relevant
securitias to be allotted after such expiry and, notwithstanding such expiry, the Directors may allot relevant secunties in
pursuance of such offers or agreements (Resclution 7)

A Special Resclution, to empower the Directors to allot equity securities (a3 defined for the purposes of Section 571 of the
Companies Act 2006 {the “Act™) pursuant to Section 551 of the Act, as if Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment provided that this power shall be mited

{) to the allotment of equity secunties in connection with any rights issue in favour of holders of ordinary shares
in the capital of the Company on the register of members at such record date or dates as the Directors may
determine for the purposes of the issue where the eguity secunties respectively attributable to the interests of all
such shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as may be} to the respective number of ordmary shares in the capital
of the Company held by the ordinary shareholders, and for the avoidance of doubt, the Directors may make such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Diractors may deesm necessary or expedient to deal with fractionat entitlements
or tegal or practical problems undar the laws of overseas junsdictions or the requirements of any regulatory body; and

{ii} to the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (i) above) of equity securities having an aggregate maximum
nominat amount of £958,819 (19,176,380 sharas) in the case of ordinary shares

and this power shall expire on the date of the next Annual Ganeral Meeting of the Company after the passing of this Resohution
save that the Company may before such expiry make en offer or agreament which would or might require equity secunties
to be aflotted after such expiry and the Drrectors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired (Resolution 8)

As a Special Resclution, to authorise the Company both generally and unconditionally to maks market purchases {within the meaning
of Section 693 of the Companies Act 2006} of ordinary shares of Sp each in the capital of the Company provided that:

0} the aggregate maximum nomiral value of ordinary shares hereby authonsed to be purchased 1s £1,917,638
(38,352,760 shares),

(0] the mirumum price which may be paid for ordinary shares 1 5p per ordinary share,
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Notice of Meeting

(i}  the maxsmum pnce which may be paid for ordinary shares is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the micidla markaet
quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official Lest for the five business days
mmedately praceding tha day on which the ordinary share 8 purchased,

(iv) the authonty hereby conveyed shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company,
unless such authonty is renewed prior to such time, and

(v} the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the authority hereby conveyed prior to the
axpiry of such authority which will or may be exscuted wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may
make a purchasa of ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract (Resolution 9)

10 A Special Resolution, the purposs of which 1s to renew the authority given at the last Annual General Mesting for the Directors to call
general meetings on 14 days notice instead of 21 days (Resolutron 10)

Registered Office By order of the Board
776 Chester Road R. A. Gregson
Stratford Company Secratary
Manchester M32 0QH 9 March 2010

Notes

t The Company specifies (pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001} that ordinary
shareholders registerad in the Company's register es at 10 00am on 25 May 2010, ara entitled to attend and speak at the
Meeting and to vote on &ll rasolutions proposed at the Meating We will disregard any entrles on the register after this time
i determining who 13 entitled to attend and vote

2 A member entltled to attend, speak and vote at the Maeting 13 entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote in his/
her stead A member may nominate a proxy of his/her choice who need not be a member of the Company

3 A member may appoint one or more proxies to attend & Meeting of the Company providing each proxy Is appointed to
exercise nghts in respect of a different number of shares held by the member

4 Appointment of a proxy will not preclude a member from attending, speaking and voting at the Mesting should he/she
subsequently wish to do so

& In accordance with Section 325 of the Companies Act 2008, the right to appoint proxies does not apply to persons nominated
to receive mformation nghts under Section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 Persons who have been sent a copy of this notice
of meeting are heraby Informed, In accordance with the registerad member by whom they were nominated to be appointed,
or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy for this meeting If they have no such nght, or do not wish to exercise it, they
may have a nght under such an agreement to glve instructions to the member as to the exercise of voting rights Nominated
persons should contact the registerad member by whom they were nominated in respect of these arangements

6 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appontment service may do
50 by using the procedures in the CREST manual CREST personal members or other CREST sponscred members and those
CREST members who have appointed a voting service providar(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider{s) who will be able to take the appropnate action on their behalf

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropnate CREST message
(a "CREST Proxy Instruction™} must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limitad {formerly
CRESTCO's) specifications and must contan the mnformation required for such mstructions, as described in the CREST
Manual The message, regardlass of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction
given to a previously appointment proxy, must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be recerved by the issuer's agent
(ID RA10) by the latest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified in this notice For this purpose, the time of raceipt
will be taken to be the time (as detenmmined by the timestamp apphed to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from
which the registrars are able to retrieve the message by enguiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this
time, any change of mstructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through
other means CREST members and, whers applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider{s} should note that
Euroclear UK & Iretand Limited does not make available special procedures m CREST for any particular messages Normal
system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It is the responsibility
of the CREST member concemed to take (or, f the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member
or has appointed & voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 19 transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time
In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, thelr CREST sponsors or voting sarvice providers are referred,
in particutar, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings

Leokers plo Annual Report & Accounts 2009




9

Notice of Mesting

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set cut in Regulation 35(5)(a} of the
Uncertifiad Securities Regulations 2001

Caprta Registrars maintain the Company’s share register They also provide a telephone helpline service cn 0871 864 0300
calls cost 10p a minute plus network extras Lines are open from 8 30am to § 30pm, Monday to Fnday If you have any quenes
about voting or about your shareholding, please contact Capita Registrars

Members have the nght to ask questions at the meeting in accordance with section 319A of the Companies Act 2006

10 Sharesholders should note that #t 13 possible that, pursuant to requests made by them under section 527 of the Companies

1

Act 2006, the Company may be requirad 1o publish on its website & statement setting out any matter that such shareholders
propose to raise at the Annual Generat Mesting relating to the audit of the Company's accounts (including the auditor’s report
and the conduct of the audt) that are 0 be tald before the Annual General Meeting.

The Company may not require the shareholders requesting any such wabsite publication to pay its expenses in complying
with sections $27 or 528 of the Compantes Act 2006 Whaere the Company is raquired to place a statement on its website
under section 527 of the Act, it must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not later than the time when it makes
the statement avalable on the website The business which may be dealt with at the Annual General Meeting includes any
statement that the Company has been required under sectlon 527 of the Act to publish on its website

Members have the nght (i} to require the company to give notice of a resolution to be moved at the meeting in accordance
with section 338 of the Companies Act 2006 and (i) to require the company to include a matter in the business to be dealt
with at the meeting n accordance with saction 338A of the Act

12 A Form of Proxy is enclosed for use by shareholders in respect of Resolutrons 1 to 10

13 A Form of Proxy must be lodged with the Company’s Registrars, Proxy Department, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,

BR3 4TU, not less than 48 hours before the time apponted for the holding of the Annual General Meeting or any adjoumned
Meating

14 The following information 1s available for inspection on any weekday (except Saturday) dunng usual business hours at the

Registerad Office of the Company and will, on the date of the Annual General Meeting, be avallable for inspection from
11 45am until the conclusion of that Meeting

{a) Register of members of the Company

(b) The Memorandum and Articles of Association of tha Company
(c) Detalls of proxies received

{d) Terms and conditions of the appeointment of Diractors

{e} Register of Directors Interests

15 The Company’s Issued share capital on 8 March 2010 was 383,527,608 ordinary shares of Sp each, all shares have voting

rights one share one vote.
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Shareholders, Bankers and

Professional Advisors

Share Quotss

Share pnces of the ordinary shares are shown In
the Financial Times and also appear in several
other newspapers

Shareholder Benefits

Wae operate a scheme which provides all registered
private shareholders holding a mimmum of 5,000
ordinary shares with an additional £100 discount

off the price of any new motor vehicla purchased
from any of the Group's dealerships The private
registered sharehaolder negotiates his/her purchase
of the new vehicle in the normal way and the £100 is
an additional discount obtained from the Company
Secretary

Electronic Communication

Capita Registrars provide a shara portal service, which
allows shareholders to access a vanety of saervices
online, including viewing shareholdings, buying and
selling shares online, registering change of address
details and bank mandates to have dividends pald
directly into your bank account

In addition, shareholders can register an eman address
and eloct to receve future Company reports and
accourts in electronic form

Any sharehclder who wishes to register with Capita to

take advantage of this service should visit

A, R DR T 1 W RS, COITI CHAMPT OIGOTS
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Principal Bankers

Bank of Ireland

Barclays Bank PLC

HSBC Bank plc

Lloyds TSB

National Austraiia Bank

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Registrars and Transter Office
Capita Registrars

Woodsome Park

Fenay Bridge

Huddersfield HD8 OLA

Auditors

Delottte LLP

PO Box 500

2 Hardman Street
Manchester MGD 2AT

Stockbrokers

Numis Securities Limited

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

tondon EC4M TLT

KBC Peel Hunt
111 Old Broad Strest
London EC2M 1AP

Financial Advisora

NM Rothschild & Sons Limited
82 King Strest

Manchester M2 4WQ




